FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

207 N. SAN MARCO AVENUE ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32084 PHONE (904) 827-2294 FAX (904) 827-2357

WWW.FSDB.K12.FL.US



Florida School for the Deaf & the Blind

Do More. Be More. Achieve More.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Integrated Mass Alert and Notification System RFP-17-026

Commodity Code #
83121700 Mass communication services

July 24, 2017



Table of Contents

SECTION 1	I - INTRODUCTION	Δ
1.1	Introduction to the Procurement	
1.2	Statement of Purpose	
1.3	Term of the Agreement	
1.4	Contact Person: Procurement Manager & Procurement Officer	⊿
1.5	Definitions	
1.6	Small, Minority, and Florida Certified Veterans Business Participation	
1.0	Special Accommodations	
	2 – PROCESS	
2.1	General Overview of the Process	
2.1	Official Notices and Public Records	
2.2	Protests and Disputes	
2.3 2.4	Limitations on Contacting FSDB Personnel and Others	٠۵
2.4	Schedule of Events and Deadlines	
2.5 2.6	Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply	
2.0 2.7	Written Questions	
	Receipt of Replies	
2.8 2.9	Request to Withdraw Reply	
2.9 2.10	Cost of Preparation of Reply	
2.11	Terms and Conditions	
2.12	Conflict of Interest	
2.13	Convicted Vendors	
2.14	Discriminatory Vendors	
2.15	Respondent's Representation and Authorization	
2.16	Manufacturer's Name and Approved Equivalents	
2.17	Performance Qualifications	
2.18	Public Opening	
2.19	Notification and Advertisement	
2.20	Electronic Posting of Notice of Intended Award	
2.21	Contract Formation	
2.22	Contract Overlap	
2.23	Public Records	
2.24	Truth-In-Negotiation	
2.25	No Discrimination	
2.26	FSDB's Reserved Rights	
	3 – SPECIFICATIONS	
3.1	Funding Limits Minimum Specifications, System Architecture, Dioling, Infrastructure, and Security	
3.2	Minimum Specifications - System Architecture, Dialing, Infrastructure, and Security	
3.3	Minimum Specifications - Message Creation and Delivery	
3.4 3.5	Minimum Specifications - Training, Maintenance, Support	
	Minimum Specifications - Pricing Structure	
3.6 3.7	Vendor Registration in MyFloridaMarketPlace Performance Bond Is Not Required Prior to Contract Execution	۱۵ 1 <i>4</i>
	4 – INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDING	
4.1	How to Submit a Reply	
4.1 4.2	Content of the Reply	
4.2	Reply Format	
4.3 4.4	Public Records and Trade Secrets	
	5 – THE SELECTION METHODOLOGY	
5.1	Selection Procedures	
5.1 5.2	Evaluation Methodology for Ranking	
5.2 5.3	Final Selection and Notice of Intent to Award Contract	
	A – General Terms & Conditions and Sample Contract	
	B – Proposal Form	
	D – Qualification and Rating and Evaluation Sheet(s)	
	E – Receipt of Addendum Form	
\mathcal{M}	L NOUCIPLUI NUUCIUUIII I UIII	7



APPENDIX F – Identical Tie Bids Statement	40
APPENDIX G – Public Entity Crimes Sworn Statement	41
APPENDIX H – Affidavit of Compliance with Minority Business Participation	43
APPENDIX I – Notice to Contractors	44
APPENDIX J – Reply Submission Label	45
APPENDIX K – Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply	
• •	



SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION

1.1 Introduction to the Procurement

The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind (FSDB), is promulgating this solicitation for the specified services to result in a five (5) year Contractual Agreement and intends to adhere to all applicable laws, rules, and regulations to ensure an open and fair process. This solicitation is designed to obtain a qualified vendor who demonstrates an ability to provide the goods or services stipulated in this solicitation in an equitable and economical manner. Any entity, organization, company, or person interested in submitting a reply must comply with any and all of the terms and conditions described in this Competitive Solicitation. Potential respondents to the solicitation are encouraged to carefully review all the materials contained herein and prepare responses according to the instructions. Respondents are responsible for being aware of the contents of this solicitation and the existence of updates, amendments, clarifications, modifications, and changes published to FSDB's Solicitation web page located at: http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations/.

1.2 Statement of Purpose

FSDB is seeking a qualified Vendor, consistent with the requirements outlined in this solicitation, to provide software, licensing, and support to implement a high-speed, vendor hosted, automated communication system to deliver both emergency and routine notifications by voice, video and/or text to all types of devices to include:

- Voice telephone calls;
- Text messages;
- Emails;
- Social media;
- Digital signage

- HD TV;
- Videophones;
- Mobile App; and
- PC and Macintosh computers.

The objectives of this Mass Alert and Notification System include:

- to provide early alert and notification of emergency situations;
- to disseminate emergency messages during and after an emergency;
- To provide a visual and auditory medium to make routine announcements to individuals, facilities, or departments; and
- To provide a mobile app which can be utilized by users to report emergency situations as well as transmit the location of the individual making the report.

These objectives will be met via the Mass Alert and Notification System by delivery through multiple different media to ensure that effective and timely messages are delivered. The proposed solution should be a single, integrated solution offering comprehensive security and built in redundancy of operations based on the concept of a unified messaging and communication application. It should provide for a single, common process to issue alerts or other communication requests over multiple protocols and devices.

1.3 Term of the Agreement

The anticipated start date of the contract resulting from this solicitation is **September 1**, **2017**, or upon the date of execution, whichever is later. The contract shall end on **June 30**, **2022**, contingent upon satisfactory performance evaluations as determined by FSDB, and shall be subject to the availability of funds.

1.4 Contact Person: Procurement Manager & Procurement Officer

This solicitation is issued by the State of Florida, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind. The sole contact point for all communication regarding this solicitation is the Procurement Officer, then the Procurement Manager:

- 1. Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator & Procurement Officer, 904-827-2294, meyersc@fsdb.k12.fl.us
- 2. Susan Bright, Director of Purchasing & Procurement Manager, 904-827-2356, brights@fsdb.k12.fl.us



Mailing Address:

The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind Attention: Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator Building #28, Purchasing Department 207 North San Marco Avenue St. Augustine, FL. 32084

All contact with the Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer shall be in writing via electronic mail, U.S. Mail, or other common courier. No facsimiles or telephone calls will be accepted for any reason.

1.5 Definitions

The definitions found in §60A-1.001, F.A.C. shall apply to this solicitation. Additional terms are also defined in Appendix A, General Terms & Conditions and relevant applicable statutes.

1.6 Small, Minority, and Florida Certified Veterans Business Participation

Small Businesses, Certified Minority Business Enterprises, and Florida Certified Veterans Business Enterprises are encouraged to submit proposals in response to this solicitation and to participate in any conferences, proceedings, and presolicitation or pre-proposal meetings which are scheduled. All Vendors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment.

1.7 Special Accommodations

Any person with a qualified disability requiring special accommodations at the pre-submission conference and/or response opening shall contact the Purchasing Director at (904) 827-2356 at least five (5) working days prior to the event. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact this office by using the Florida Relay Services which can be reached at 1-800-955-8771 (TDD).

SECTION 2 – PROCESS

2.1 General Overview of the Process

Replies that meet the Mandatory Requirements of this solicitation (Section 5.1) and are otherwise responsive will be eligible for evaluation. Responsive Vendors will be evaluated and ranked and FSDB will post a notice of intended contract award, identifying the Vendor selected for award.

2.2 Official Notices and Public Records

2.2.1 Notices Regarding the solicitation

All notices, decisions, intended decisions, addenda and other matters relating to this procurement will be electronically posted on FSDB's website and the Florida Vendor Bid System (VBS).

VBS website located at: http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu. In order to find postings:

- 1. Click on Search Advertisements.
- 2. Under "Agency" select "Florida School for the Deaf and Blind".
- 3. Scroll down to the bottom of the screen and click on "Advertisement Search."

FSDB's Solicitation website located at: http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations/. In order to find postings:

- 1. Click on "Current FSDB Competitive Solicitations".
- 2. Navigate to individual Solicitation folders.
- 3. Download the Solicitation Document(s).

It is the responsibility of prospective Vendors to check FSDB website and the VBS for addenda, notices of decisions, and other information or clarifications to this solicitation.

2.2.2 Public Records

All electronic and written communications pertaining to this solicitation, whether sent from or received by FSDB, are subject to the Florida public records laws. **Section 4.4** addresses the submission of trade secret and other information exempted from public inspection.



2.3 Protests and Disputes

2.3.1 Time Limits for Filing Protests

Any person who is adversely affected by the decision or intended decision made by FSDB pursuant to this solicitation shall file with FSDB a notice of protest in writing within 72 hours (Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays excluded) after the posting of the notice of decision, or intended decision. The formal written protest shall be filed within 10 days after the date the notice of protest is filed.

2.3.2 Protests of Terms, Conditions and Specifications

With respect to a protest of the terms, conditions and specifications contained in this solicitation, including any provisions governing the methods for ranking replies, awarding contracts, or modifying or amending any contract, the notice of protest shall be filed in writing within 72 hours (Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays excluded) after the posting of the solicitation. For purposes of this provision, the term "the solicitation" includes any addendum, response to written questions, clarification or other document concerning the terms, conditions, or specifications of the solicitation. The formal written protest shall be filed within 10 days after the date the notice of protest is filed.

2.3.3 Protest Bond Requirement

When protesting a decision or intended decision (including a protest of the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the solicitation), the protestor must post a bond equal to one percent of FSDB's estimated contract amount. The estimated contract amount shall be based upon the contract price submitted by the protestor. If no contract price was submitted, FSDB shall provide the estimated contract amount to the protestor within 72 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the notice of protest has been filed. The estimated contract amount is not subject to protest pursuant to §120.57(3), F. S. The bond shall be conditioned upon the payment of all costs and charges that are adjudged against the protestor in the administrative hearing in which action is brought and in any subsequent appellate court proceeding. FAILURE TO FILE THE PROPER BOND AT THE TIME OF FILING THE FORMAL PROTEST WILL RESULT IN A REJECTION OF THE PROTEST. In lieu of a bond FSDB may accept a cashier's check, official bank check, or money order in the amount of the bond.

2.3.4 Filing a Protest

A notice of protest, formal protest, and bond are "filed", when received by the contact person listed in **Section 1.4** above. Filing may be achieved by hand- delivery, courier, US Mail or facsimile transfer. Filing by email will not be accepted. All methods of delivery or transmittal to FSDB's contact person shall remain the responsibility of the protestor and the risk of non- receipt or delayed receipt shall be upon the protestor. FAILURE TO FILE A PROTEST WITHIN THE TIME PRESCRIBED IN §120.57(3), F.S., OR FAILURE TO POST THE BOND OR OTHER SECURITY REQUIRED BY LAW WITHIN THE TIME ALLOWED FOR FILING A BOND SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER CHAPTER 120, F.S.

2.4 Limitations on Contacting FSDB Personnel and Others

2.4.1 General Limitation

Prospective Vendors or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, between the release of this solicitation and the end of the 72-hour period (Saturdays, Sundays and state holidays excluded), following FSDB's posting of the notice of intended award, FSDB personnel or any employee or officer of the executive or legislative branch concerning any aspect of this solicitation, except in writing to the contact person identified in Section 1.4 above or as provided in this solicitation. Any such contact by an affiliate, a person with a relevant business relationship with a prospective Vendor, or an existing or prospective subcontractor to a prospective Vendor is assumed to be on behalf of a prospective Vendor unless otherwise shown. As part of a response to an FSDB request for additional or clarifying information pursuant to Section 2.14.1 or inspection or an FSDB investigation pursuant to Section 2.14.2, Vendor representatives may communicate directly with other FSDB personnel or consultants identified by the Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer for such purposes.

2.4.2 Contact During the Solicitation Process

During the negotiations phase of this solicitation:



- i. Any contact and communication between the members of the negotiations team for the prospective Vendor(s) with whom FSDB is negotiating and the negotiations team for FSDB is permissible, but only "on the record" (as required by §286.0113(2), F.S.) during the negotiations meetings;
- ii. Communication between the lead negotiator for the prospective Vendor(s) with whom FSDB is negotiating and the lead negotiator for FSDB outside of the negotiations meetings is permissible so long as it is in writing; and
- iii. Communications between prospective Vendor representatives and other FSDB representatives is permissible only as determined in writing by the Procurement Manager. <u>As part of an activity initiated by FSDB during the negotiations phase, such as service or product demonstration, testing or development, Vendor representatives may communicate directly with other FSDB personnel or consultants identified by the Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer or the Chief Negotiator for such purposes.</u>

2.4.3 Violation of Contact Limitations

Violation of the provisions of **Section 2.4** of this solicitation may be grounds for rejecting a reply, if determined by FSDB to be material in nature.

2.5 Schedule of Events and Deadlines

All times in the event schedule are local times for the Eastern time zone. Although FSDB may choose to use additional means of publicizing the results of this solicitation, posting on the VBS is the only official notice recognized for the purpose of determining timeliness in the event of protest.

ACTIVITY	DATE	TIME (EASTERN)	ADDRESS	SECTION REFERENCE
Solicitation advertised and released on Florida VBS	7/24/2017		http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu	2.2.1
Solicitation released on FSDB website	7/24/2017		http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations	2.2.1
Advertisement Period Close	8/22/2017			
Question Submission Deadline	8/24/2017	10:00AM	meyersc@fsdb.k12.fl.us	2.8
Answers Issued as Addendum	8/25/2017		http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations	2.8
Submission Deadline	9/6/2017	1:45PM	207 N. San Marco Ave. Attn: Charles Meyers, Purchasing/Warehouse, St. Augustine, FL 32084	2.9.1
Bid Opening	9/6/2017	2:00PM	207 N. San Marco Ave. Moore Hall CLD, St. Augustine, FL 32084	2.2
Selection Committee Review	9/6/2017			
Results Notification	9/6/2017		http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations	2.21
Intent to Award Advertisement Open	9/6/2017		http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu	2.22
Intent to Award Advertisement Close	9/11/2017			
Agreement Draft, Review, Execution	9/11/2017			
Contract term begins*	9/12/2017			

2.6 Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply

Vendors who are interested in responding to this solicitation are encouraged to send a Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply (Appendix I) to the Procurement Officer specified in Section 1.4. Submission of a Notice of Intent is <u>not</u> a pre-requisite for acceptance of replies from prospective Vendors.

2.7 Written Questions

Prospective Vendor questions will only be accepted if submitted in writing to the Procurement Officer specified in **Section 1.4**, via electronic mail, U.S. Mail, or other delivery service, and received on or before the date and time specified in **Section 2.5**. No questions will be accepted by facsimile or telephone or after the specified deadline.



Copies of the responses to all inquiries, and clarifications or addenda if made to the solicitation, will be made available by the date and time specified in **Section 2.5** in writing by amendment pursuant to §287.057(2), F.S. through electronic posting on FSDB's website and the VBS website (**Section 2.2.1**).

Potential respondents shall not contact any other employee of FSDB or the State for information with respect to this solicitation. Each respondent is responsible for monitoring the VBS and FSDB website for new or changing information. FSDB shall not be bound by any verbal information or by any written information that is not contained within the solicitation documents or formally noticed and issued by FSDB's Procurement Officer or Procurement Manager. Questions submitted to FSDB shall not constitute formal protest of the specifications or of the solicitation.

2.8 Receipt of Replies

2.8.1 Reply Deadline

Replies must be received by FSDB no later than the date and time and at the address provided in **Section 2.5**. Time of arrival for hand delivered responses shall be determined by the time of arrival at FSDB Campus Police Security Check Point. Time of arrival for responses delivered by mail or courier shall be determined by the time of receipt by FSDB Campus Mail Room. All methods of delivery or transmittal to FSDB's contact person remain the responsibility of the prospective Vendor and the risk of non-receipt or delayed receipt shall be exclusively the risk of the prospective Vendor.

2.8.2 Binding Replies

By submitting a reply, each Vendor agrees that its reply shall remain a valid offer for at least 90 days after the reply opening date and that, in the event the contract award is delayed by appeal or protest, such 90-day period is extended until entry of a final order in response to such appeal or protest. Any response that expresses a shorter duration may, in FSDB's sole discretion, be accepted or rejected.

2.8.3 Bid Bond Not Required

A bid bond or equivalent security is <u>not</u> required in order to submit a reply to this solicitation.

2.8.4 Payment and Performance Bond Is Not Required

A payment and performance bond is <u>not</u> required for this contract and submission of evidence of the Vendor's ability to do so is required in order to submit a reply to this solicitation.

2.8.5 Changes to Replies After Submission Prohibited

Once the reply opening deadline has passed, no changes, modifications, or additions to the reply submitted will be accepted by or be binding upon FSDB unless and until FSDB initiates negotiations or requests supplemental replies. FSDB reserves the right to correct minor irregularities as provided in **Section 2.14.1**, but is under no obligation to do so.

2.8.6 Receipt Statement

Replies that are not received at the specified address, by the specified date and time, or not marked as instructed will be rejected and will not be opened or returned by FSDB. FSDB will retain one unopened original for use in the event of a dispute.

2.9 Request to Withdraw Reply

A written request to withdraw a reply, signed by the Vendor, may be considered if received by FSDB within 72 hours after the reply opening date and time as specified in **Section 2.5** above. A request received in accordance with this provision may be granted by FSDB upon proof of the impossibility to perform based upon an obvious Vendor error.

2.10 Cost of Preparation of Reply

By submitting a reply, a Vendor agrees that FSDB is not liable for any costs incurred by the Vendor in responding to this solicitation.



2.11 Terms and Conditions

FSDB objects to and shall not consider any additional terms or conditions submitted by a respondent, including any appearing in documents attached as part of a respondent's response. In submitting its response, a respondent agrees that any additional terms or conditions, whether submitted intentionally or inadvertently, shall have no force or effect. Failure to comply with terms and conditions, including those specifying information that must be submitted with a response, shall be grounds for rejecting a response.

2.12 Conflict of Interest

This solicitation is subject to Chapter 112, F.S. Respondents shall disclose with their response the name of any officer, director, employee or other agent who is also an employee of the State. Respondents shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the respondent or its affiliates.

2.13 Convicted Vendors

A person or affiliate placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime is prohibited from doing any of the following for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list:

- submitting a bid/proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;
- submitting a bid/proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work;
- submitting bids on leases of real property to a public entity;
- being awarded or performing work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and
- transacting business with any public entity in excess of the Category Two threshold amount (\$25,000) provided in §287.017,
 F.S.

2.14 Discriminatory Vendors

An entity or affiliate placed on the discriminatory vendor list pursuant to §287.134, F.S. may not:

- submit a bid/proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;
- submit a bid/proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work;
- submit a bid/proposal on leases of real property to a public entity;
- be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, sub-contractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity;
- transact business with any public entity.

2.15 Respondent's Representation and Authorization

In submitting a response, each respondent understands, represents, and acknowledges the following (if the respondent cannot so certify to any of following, the respondent shall submit a written explanation).

- The respondent is not currently under suspension or debarment by the State or any other governmental authority.
- To the best of the knowledge of the person signing the response, the respondent, its affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, officers, and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental authority and have not in the last ten (10) years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract.
- Respondent currently has no delinquent obligations to the State, including a claim by the State for liquidated damages under any other contract.
- The submission is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, or inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other noncompetitive response.
- The prices and amounts have been arrived at independently and without consultation, communication, or agreement with any other respondent or potential respondent; neither the prices nor amounts, actual or approximate, have been disclosed to any respondent or potential respondent, and they will not be disclosed before the solicitation opening.
- The respondent has fully informed FSDB in writing of all convictions of the firm, its affiliates (as defined in §287.133(1)(a), F.S.), and all directors, officers, and employees of the firm and its affiliates for violation of state or federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract for violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy or material misrepresentation with respect to a public contract. This includes disclosure of the names of current employees who were convicted of contract crimes while in the employ of another company.
- Neither the respondent nor any person associated with it in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal, investigator, project director, manager, auditor, or position involving the administration of federal funds:



- Has within the preceding three years been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them or is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state, or local government transaction or public contract; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; or
- Has within a three-year period preceding this certification had one or more federal, state, or local government contracts terminated for cause or default.
- The product offered by the respondent will conform to the specifications without exception.
- The respondent has read and understands the Contract terms and conditions, and the submission is made in conformance with those terms and conditions.
- If an award is made to the respondent, the respondent agrees that it intends to be legally bound to the Contract that is formed with FSDB.
- The respondent has made a diligent inquiry of its employees and agents responsible for preparing, approving, or submitting the response, and has been advised by each of them that he or she has not participated in any communication, consultation, discussion, agreement, collusion, act or other conduct inconsistent with any of the statements and representations made in the response.
- The respondent shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless FSDB and its employees against any cost, damage, or expense which may be incurred or be caused by any error in the respondent's preparation of its response.
- All information provided by, and representations made by, the respondent are material and important and will be relied upon
 by FSDB in awarding the Contract. Any misstatement shall be treated as fraudulent concealment from FSDB of the true
 facts relating to submission of the response. A misrepresentation shall be punishable under law, including, but not limited to,
 Chapter 817, F.S.

2.16 Manufacturer's Name and Approved Equivalents

Unless otherwise specified, any manufacturers' names, trade names, brand names, information or catalog numbers listed in a specification are descriptive, not restrictive. With FSDB's prior approval, the Contractor may provide any product that meets or exceeds the applicable specifications. The Contractor shall demonstrate comparability, including appropriate catalog materials, literature, specifications, test data, etc. FSDB shall determine in its sole discretion whether a product is acceptable as an equivalent.

2.17 Performance Qualifications

FSDB reserves the right to investigate or inspect at any time whether the product, qualifications, or facilities offered by Respondent meet the Contract requirements. Respondent shall at all times during the Contract term remain responsive and responsible. In determining Respondent's responsibility as a vendor, FSDB shall consider all information or evidence which is gathered or comes to the attention of FSDB which demonstrates the Respondent's capability to fully satisfy the requirements of the solicitation and the contract.

Respondent must be prepared, if requested by FSDB, to present evidence of experience, ability, and financial standing, as well as a statement as to plant, machinery, and capacity of the respondent for the production, distribution, and servicing of the product bid. If FSDB determines that the conditions of the solicitation documents are not complied with, or that the product proposed to be furnished does not meet the specified requirements, or that the qualifications, financial standing, or facilities are not satisfactory, or that performance is untimely, FSDB may reject the response or terminate the Contract. Respondent may be disqualified from receiving awards if respondent, or anyone in respondent's employment, has previously failed to perform satisfactorily in connection with public bidding or contracts. This paragraph shall not mean or imply that it is obligatory upon FSDB to make an investigation either before or after award of the Contract, but should FSDB elect to do so, respondent is not relieved from fulfilling all Contract requirements.

2.18 Public Opening

Responses shall be opened on the date and time as specified in **Section 2.5**. Respondents may attend, but are not required to attend. FSDB may choose not to announce prices or release other materials pursuant to §119.071(1)(b), F.S. Any person requiring a special accommodation because of a disability should contact the Contract Administrator at least five (5) workdays prior to the solicitation opening. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact FSDB by using the Florida Relay Service at (800) 955-8771 (TDD).



2.19 Notification and Advertisement

Notification and advertisement is conducted pursuant to §255.0525, F.S. and may include but not be limited to: the Florida Administrative Register, Onvia's DemandStar, FSDB Website, the My Florida Market Place Vendor Bid System, and additional notifications and advertisements at the discretion of FSDB or as required by law.

2.20 Electronic Posting of Notice of Intended Award

Based on the evaluation, on the date indicated on the Timeline, FSDB shall electronically post a notice of intended award at http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu. If the notice of award is delayed, in lieu of posting the notice of intended award FSDB shall post a notice of the delay and a revised date for posting the notice of intended award. Any person who is adversely affected by the decision shall file with FSDB a notice of protest within 72 hours after the electronic posting. FSDB shall not provide tabulations or notices of award by telephone.

2.21 Contract Formation

FSDB shall issue a notice of award, if any, to successful respondent(s), however, no contract shall be formed between respondent and FSDB until FSDB signs the Contract. FSDB shall not be liable for any costs incurred by a respondent in preparing or producing its response or for any work performed before the Contract is effective.

2.22 Contract Overlap

Respondents shall identify any products covered by this solicitation that they are currently authorized to furnish under any state term contract. By entering into the Contract, a Contractor authorizes FSDB to eliminate duplication between agreements in the manner FSDB deems to be in its best interest.

2.23 Public Records

Article 1, Section 24, Florida Constitution, guarantees every person access to all public records, and §119.011, F.S., provides a broad definition of a public record. As such, all responses to a competitive solicitation are public records unless exempt by law. Any respondent claiming that its response contains information that is exempt from the public records law shall clearly segregate and mark that information and provide the specific statutory citation for such exemption. FSDB is not responsible for releasing information to the public that has not been segregated and marked.

2.24 Truth-In-Negotiation

The successful firm may be required to execute a Truth-In-Negotiation Certificate pursuant to §287.055, F.S.

2.25 No Discrimination

The successful firm shall not discriminate against any person in accordance with federal, state, or local law.

2.26 FSDB's Reserved Rights

2.26.1 Waiver of Minor Irregularities

FSDB reserves the right to waive minor irregularities when doing so would be in the best interest of the State of Florida. A minor irregularity is a variation from the terms and conditions of this solicitation which does not affect the price of the reply or give the Vendor a substantial advantage over other Vendors and thereby restrict or stifle competition and does not adversely impact the interest of FSDB. At its option, FSDB may correct minor irregularities but is under no obligation to do so. When correcting minor irregularities, FSDB may request the Vendor provide clarifying information or additional materials to correct the minor irregularity. However, FSDB will not request and the Vendor shall not provide additional materials that affect the price of the proposal, or give the Vendor an advantage or benefit not enjoyed by other Vendors.

2.26.2 Right to Inspect, Investigate, and Rely on Information

In ranking replies for selection or negotiation and in making a final selection, FSDB reserves the right to inspect a Vendor's facilities and operations, to investigate any Vendor representations, and to rely on information about a Vendor in FSDB's records or known to its personnel.



2.26.3 Rejection of All Replies

FSDB reserves the right to reject all replies at any time, including after an award is made when doing so would be in the best interest of the State of Florida, and by doing so assumes no liability to any Vendor.

2.26.4 Withdrawal of solicitation

FSDB reserves the right to withdraw the solicitation at any time, including after an award is made when doing so would be in the best interest of the State of Florida, and by doing so assumes no liability to any Vendor.

2.26.5 Reserved Rights After Notice of Award

- **2.14.5.1** FSDB reserves the right to schedule additional negotiation sessions with Vendors identified in the posting of a Notice of Award in order to establish final terms and conditions for contracts with those Vendors.
- **2.14.5.2** FSDB reserves the right, after posting notice thereof, to withdraw or amend its Notice of Award and reopen negotiations with any Vendor at any time prior to execution of a contract.

2.26.6 Other Reserved Rights

FSDB reserves all rights described elsewhere in this solicitation.

SECTION 3 – SPECIFICATIONS

3.1 Funding Limits

Goods or Services sought under this solicitation are limited by the availability of funds.

3.2 Minimum Specifications - System Architecture, Dialing, Infrastructure, and Security

The Mass Alert and Notification System for FSDB shall allow for preprogrammed and spontaneous audio and visual messaging for calls and direct paging to specific zones, recipients, rooms, or buildings according to the following specifications:

- 3.2.1 Proposer should provide a web-based system which provides FSDB the ability to access the system via a secure internet connection from any computer, tablet or smart phone in order to send out alerts and notifications.
- 3.2.2 Proposed system should allow access for at least six-hundred (600) users activating all types of alerts and notifications database maintenance, system maintenance, report queries, or whatever duties their assigned security level allows.
- 3.2.3 The system should recognize authorized users and allow administrators to limit user access to appropriate security levels. For example, the Transportation Department users may be permitted to send notices for road closures but would not be able to access the emergency alerting capabilities of the system.
- 3.2.4 Proposer should have robust software with the ability to be virtualized with failover mechanisms in place. Proposer should describe its system in full. Describe the system's security and redundancy where there is no single point of failure. What happens if proposer's main server fails? Describe redundant systems in place to ensure system availability. Server failover should happen without human intervention and without need for prior action upon impending system failure.
- 3.2.5 Must be capable of sending out messages, at a minimum, via:
 - **3.2.5.1** VoIP
 - **3.2.5.2** e-mail
 - 3.2.5.3 AND IP Speakers and Prolite signs
 - **3.2.5.4** Macintosh and Windows computers
 - **3.2.5.5** Soft Phone
 - 3.2.5.6 Videophone
 - **3.2.5.7** LCD Panels
 - 3.2.5.8 Mobile App (IOS and Android, with automatic location reporting) supporting:
 - **3.2.5.8.1** Cell Phone
 - 3.2.5.8.2 Text Messaging
 - **3.2.5.8.3** Social Media



3.2.6	The proposed s	system must in	tegrate with	FSDB sv	stems including

- 3.2.6.1 Shooter Detection System
- 3.2.6.2 Whalen Alert System
- 3.2.6.3 LCD Panels, Digital Signage & Video PA
- 3.2.6.4 Intercom systems
- 3.2.6.5 Wireless (Panic) Buttons
- 3.2.6.6 LCD HD-TV Control
- **3.2.6.7** Soft Phone
- 3.2.6.8 Security Cameras
- 3.2.6.9 Videophone

3.3 Minimum Specifications - Message Creation and Delivery

- **3.3.1** Creating a notification should be quick and easy.
- 3.3.2 System should have the capability of being activated by FSDB from a mobile application. Please explain the functionality provided by the application.
- 3.3.3 System should have the ability to prioritize messages (i.e. High, Medium, Low).
- 3.3.4 Should have the ability to broadcast live voice or send pre-recorded and/or uploaded voice and video files.
- **3.3.5** System should include an accurate and clear text-to-speech feature for notifications.
- 3.3.6 The system should have the ability to create scenarios and store prepared messages to be initiated in the future.
- 3.3.7 The proposed system should include the capability to create and customize queries.

3.4 Minimum Specifications - Training, Maintenance, Support

- 3.4.1 Proposer should provide 8 hour x 5 days a week technical support via remote access and/or telephone.
- 3.4.2 Proposer should provide and assist with installation of new versions of licensed software.
- 3.4.3 Proposer should provide at least two (2) hours training each contract year by phone.

3.5 Minimum Specifications - Pricing Structure

- 3.5.1 Proposals must include the attached standard Proposal form spreadsheet indicating the cost breakdown for the all included services offered. Any options will be included as a separate line and clearly indicated as an option.
- Explain how your pricing is determined (population, registrations, contacts) and what is included in the proposed price.
- 3.5.4 Outline and explain any possible additional fees or provide a clear statement that there will be no additional fees.

3.6 Vendor Registration in MyFloridaMarketPlace

In order to be paid, each Vendor doing business with the state must register in the MyFloridaMarketPlace system and pay the required transaction fees, unless exempted under Rule 60A-1.030(3), F.A.C. If the Vendor is already registered in MyFloridaMarketPlace prior to submitting a reply, the Vendor may include a signed Certificate of Registration. Vendors who are not subject to registration requirements should include proof of exemption from registration. Failure to include either proof of registration or exemption will not prevent the evaluation of the reply, however, proof of registration or exemption must be provided prior to execution of a contract, if any.



Performance Bond <u>Is Not</u> Required Prior to Contract Execution

The selected Vendor is not required to submit a payment and performance bond, irrevocable letter of credit or cashier's check.

[This space intentionally left blank]

SECTION 4 - INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDING

4.1 How to Submit a Reply

4.1.1 Mandatory Reply Deadline

All replies must be received by the Procurement Officer or Procurement Manager by the deadline and at the address set forth in **Section 2.5**. The Vendor must choose the appropriate means for delivery, and is exclusively responsible for receipt of the reply by the Procurement Officer or Procurement Manager. Late replies will not be evaluated. See also **Section 2.9.1**.

4.1.2 Electronic Transmittal of Replies Not Acceptable

Facsimile or electronic transmissions of replies will not be accepted.

4.1.3 Reply Amendments

Any amendments to the reply as originally submitted by the Vendor, not required by FSDB, must comply with the requirements of this section and must be received by the deadline specified in **Section 2.5**.

4.1.4 Number of Copies Required

A complete reply consists of the following:

- **4.1.1.1 one** original Reply;
- **4.1.1.2 five** copies of the Reply;
- **4.1.1.3** <u>one</u> electronic version of the reply, identical to the hard copies, (see **Section 4.3** for formatting instructions).
- **4.1.1.4** one electronic version of the reply, with signatures, EIN, and confidential information redacted, (see **Section 4.3** for formatting instructions).

The original Reply submitted to FSDB must contain an original signature of an official who is authorized to bind the Vendor to their reply.

4.1.5 Replies to be in Sealed Envelopes

The original, each copy, and the electronic versions of the reply must be clearly identified and sealed in an appropriate sealed mailing container. The label provided in Appendix H must be securely affixed to the lower left-hand corner of the package.

4.2 Content of the Reply

4.2.1 Title Page

The first page of the Reply shall be a Title Page that contains the following information:

- **4.2.1.1** Project Name and Solicitation number;
- **4.2.1.2** Vendor's name, address, and federal tax identification number;
- **4.2.1.3** Name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of person who can respond to inquiries regarding the reply; and
- **4.2.1.4** Name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of person who will sign a contract, if awarded.

4.2.2 TAB 1: Required Vendor's Statements and Certifications – Mandatory Requirements

The reply must include all of the Mandatory Requirements, described below, and must be received by the date and time and at the address specified in **Section 2.5**. A reply that fails to meet the Mandatory Requirements will be deemed nonresponsive and will not be evaluated.

4.2.2.1 Corporate Charter/Business Registration

The firm offering services must be properly chartered with the Department of State to operate in Florida and provide a copy of the firm's current Florida Corporate Charter/ Business Registration.



4.2.2.2 My Florida Market Place (MFMP) Registration

All Contractors doing business with the State of Florida for the sale of commodities or contractual services as defined in §287.012, Florida Statutes are required to have on file a Substitute W-9 and be registered (online) with the My Florida Marketplace (MFMP) E-procurement system in compliance with Rule 60A-1.030, Florida Administrative Code, unless exempt under Rule 60A-1.030(3) Florida Administrative Code. The firm offering services must be actively registered and a copy of the firm's current active MFMP and Substitute W-9 filling must be provided.

- **4.2.2.3** Receipt of Addendum Form found in Appendix E;
- **4.2.2.4 Identical Tie Bids Statement** found in Appendix F;
- 4.2.2.5 Public Entity Crimes Sworn Statement found in Appendix G;
- 4.2.2.6 Affidavit of Compliance with Minority Business Participation found in Appendix H;
- **4.2.2.7 Notice to Contractors** found in Appendix I;

4.2.4 TAB 2: Responding to the Specifications

- **4.2.4.1** Respondent Cost Proposal. The reply must contain a completed cost proposal found in Appendix B;
- **4.2.4.2 Respondent Questionnaire.** The reply must contain a completed questionnaire found in Appendix C;

4.2.5 TAB 3: Vendor's Qualifications

4.2.5.1 References

Submissions will include at least three (3) references from prior clients within the past three years as of July 1 of the current year and shall include: project name, project location, project cost, project completion date, project description, and project owner representative name, title, phone and fax number, and email address.

4.2.5.2 Qualifications and Experience

The Reply must describe the background, experience, knowledge, skills and accomplishments of the Vendor and the individuals or subcontractors who will be assigned to this project.

The Reply must describe the Vendor's experience in implementing similar services as specifically contemplated in this solicitation. Experience shown should be work done by the individuals who will be assigned to this project as well as the overall experience of the Vendor. The Reply must state whether the Vendor was the prime contractor or a subcontractor and should provide a detailed description of any work to be subcontracted with information describing the qualifications and relevant experience of any proposed subcontractors.

In determining Vendor capability, FSDB may consider any information or evidence which comes to its attention and which reflects upon a Vendor's capability to fully perform the contract requirements or the Vendor's demonstration of the level of integrity and reliability which FSDB determines to be required to assure performance of the contract.

4.3 Reply Format

4.3.1 Replies to be Thorough

Vendors must provide thorough and specific replies for how they propose to address each of the requirements. Vendor replies must follow the format described below.



4.3.2 Reply Clarity Essential

Vendors are advised that FSDB's ability to conduct a thorough review of replies is dependent on the Vendor's ability and willingness to submit replies which are well ordered, detailed, comprehensive, and readable. Clarity of language and adequate, accessible documentation is essential, and is the responsibility of the Vendor.

4.3.3 Replies to be Concise

The Reply should be prepared concisely and economically, providing a straightforward description of services to be provided and clearly describing the Vendor's capability to satisfy the requirements of this solicitation. Emphasis should be on completeness and clarity of content. The terms "shall", "will" and "must" used within the solicitation identify items that are required to be submitted as part of the reply. A failure to comply with the submission of a required item may result in the reply being rejected at FSDB's discretion.

4.3.4 Hard-copy Reply Format

Replies must be typed, single-spaced, on 8-1/2" x 11" paper. Pages must be numbered in a logical, consistent fashion. Figures, charts and tables should be numbered and referenced by number in the text. The original and each copy of the reply must be bound and the front of each clearly labeled with the following:

- **4.3.4.1** Title of the Reply;
- **4.3.4.2** Solicitation number;
- 4.3.4.3 Vendor's name: and
- **4.3.4.4** Identification of the enclosed document (the original reply must be clearly marked as such and copies identified and numbered as copy #1, copy #2, etc.).

The Reply must contain the elements detailed in **Sections 4.2.1 through 4.2.7**, in the order listed therein.

4.3.5 Electronic Copy Format

The required electronic format of the Reply must be on a USB Thumb Drive. The software used to produce the electronic files must be unprotected Adobe portable document format ("pdf"), version 6.0 or higher. Replies must be able to be opened and viewed by FSDB utilizing Adobe Acrobat, version 9.0. The electronic copies shall not be password protected and must be identical to the original reply submitted, including the format, sequence and section headings identified in this solicitation. The electronic media must be clearly labeled in the same manner as the hard copies and submitted with the corresponding hard copies. The hard copy marked "original" shall take precedence over the electronic version(s) of the reply and all non "original" hard copy versions of the reply in the event of any discrepancy. If a discrepancy is found between the hard copy reply marked "original" and any of the electronic versions submitted, FSDB reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject the entire reply.

4.3.6 References to Separately Bound Material

References to any separately bound, supporting materials may be made. Any such references must be clear. Referenced documents must be numbered for ease of use and must be identified as such. References to supporting documents must include the document, page, and paragraph numbers. FSDB's evaluators will not be responsible for searching for relevant reference material.

4.4 Public Records and Trade Secrets

4.4.1 Replies and Other Submissions Are Property of the State

All materials submitted in reply to this solicitation become the property of the State of Florida and will be a public record subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, F.S. The State of Florida shall have the right to use such ideas or adaptations of those ideas contained in any reply without cost or charge. Selection or rejection of a reply will not affect this right.

4.4.2 Replies and Other Submissions Are Subject to Public Inspection

Unless exempted by law, all public records are subject to public inspection and copying under Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, F.S. A time-limited exemption from public inspection is provided for the contents of a reply and other submittals pursuant to §119.071(1)(b), F.S. Once that exemption expires, all contents of a reply and



other submittals become subject to public inspection unless another exemption applies. Any claim of trade secret exemption for any information contained in a Vendor's reply or other submittal to this solicitation will be waived upon opening of the reply or other submittal by FSDB, unless the claimed trade secret information is submitted in accordance with this Section. This waiver includes any information included in the Vendor's reply or other submittal outside of the separately bound document described below.

4.4.3 How to Claim Trade Secret Protection

If the Vendor considers any portion of the documents, data or records submitted in its reply to be trade secret and exempt from public inspection or disclosure pursuant to Florida's Public Records Law, the Vendor must submit all such information in a separately bound document (or in the case of electronic media, a separate file, with the words "Trade Secret" included in the file name) clearly labeled "Attachment to Reply, solicitation No. – Trade Secret Material". Appropriate cross-references should be included in nonexempt materials. The first page of the electronic file or hard copy document must explain why the information in the electronic file or hard copy document is a trade secret. This submission must be made no later than the reply submittal deadline. Where such information is part of material already required to be submitted as a separately bound or enclosed portion of the reply, it shall be further segregated and separately bound or enclosed and clearly labeled as set forth above in addition to any other labeling required of the material. If the Vendor considers any portion of a submission made after its reply to be trade secret the Vendor must clearly label the submission as containing trade secret information (or in the case of electronic media, include "Trade Secret" in the relevant file names).

4.4.4 Vendor's Duty to Respond to Public Records Requests

In response to any notice by FSDB that a public records request received by FSDB encompasses any portion of the separately bound part of the Vendor's reply or other submissions labeled as "trade secret," the Vendor shall expeditiously provide FSDB with a redacted version of the document(s) and identify in writing the specific statutes and facts that authorize exemption of the information from the Public Records Law. If different exemptions are claimed to be applicable to different portions of the redacted information, the Vendor shall provide information correlating the nature of the claims to the particular redacted information. The redacted copy must only exclude or obliterate only those exact portions that are claimed confidential or trade secret. If the Vendor fails to promptly submit a redacted copy and justification in response to the notice of a public records request, FSDB is authorized to produce the records sought without any redaction.

4.4.5 FSDB Not Obligated to Defend Vendor Claims

FSDB is not obligated to agree with the Vendor's claim of exemption and, by submitting a reply or other submission, the Vendor agrees to be responsible for defending its claim that each and every portion of the redactions is exempt from inspection and copying under Florida's Public Records Law. Further, the Vendor agrees that it shall protect, defend, and indemnify, including attorneys' fees and costs, FSDB for any and all claims and litigation (including litigation initiated by FSDB) arising from or relating to Vendor's claim that the redacted portions of its reply are confidential, proprietary, trade secret, or otherwise not subject to disclosure or the scope of the Provider's redaction.

[This space intentionally left blank]



SECTION 5 - THE SELECTION METHODOLOGY

FSDB intends to award the contract to the responsible and responsive Vendor whose reply is determined to be the most advantageous to the state. FSDB will award the contract based on a final selection by the President or designee, who will consider the relative importance of price and other evaluation criteria set forth in this solicitation. The President or designee may also make a determination as to whether to deem one or more Vendors ineligible for award. FSDB will electronically post the President's or designee's final decision and intent to award in accordance with §120.57(3)(a), F.S. and Rule 60A-1.021, F.A.C. Nothing herein limits the ability of the President or designee to confer with any FSDB personnel in the course of the process.

5.1 Selection Procedures

- 5.1.1 Each proposal will be fully evaluated. FSDB, at its sole discretion, will determine whether particular proposers have the basic qualifications and experience and/or meet the evaluation criteria. FSDB may reject the proposal of any proposer who is determined to be non-responsive. The failure of a proposer to promptly supply information may be grounds for a determination of non-responsibility.
- 5.1.2 A selection team of FSDB staff will meet and review the material submitted in response to this request. The selection team will evaluate the information provided; including the findings of the reference checks conducted, and will rate each firm/bid separately according to the factors set forth below and ranked according to the total number of points the individual proposal earned, based on the stated maximum point allowance per factor.
- 5.1.3 It will be the intent of the grading system and evaluation criteria to view each statement in terms of content, not appearance. The company will be selected on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications to perform the services and not through competitive bidding procedures. Any selection made under this solicitation shall be made to the Offeror who provides the best offer for FSDB based on the evaluation criteria found in this Request for Proposal. Should any evaluating factor change prior to selection, the Offeror shall promptly notify FSDB of such change.
- 5.1.4 Proposals will be evaluated in part on the manner in which the proposers are able to complete the Scope of Services. The prospective Offeror is encouraged to amend the project description to reflect any tasks that are deemed necessary in order to better meet project objectives. Modifications, eliminations or replacement of any of the suggested elements, objectives or approach should be clearly stated.
- 5.1.5 FSDB reserves the right to evaluate all submitted proposals and to award the project to the submission deemed to be in the best interest of FSDB. The selection team will be assigned the task of reviewing, critiquing, scoring and recommending a preferred proposal. The ultimate responsibility for awarding this project shall rest with FSDB.
- 5.1.6 Selection Materials Preparation: The Procurement Officer and Project Manager will prepare the Selection Evaluation Form. In preparing the Selection Evaluation Form, the Procurement Officer and Project Manager will list each applicant in alphabetical order and review each response for completeness and compliance with the instructions stated in the public announcement and the criteria established in the FSDB solicitation package. A copy of the Selection Evaluation form is at Appendix B.
- 5.1.7 Qualification Screening: The FSDB Procurement Manager and Procurement Officer will open and record the responses at the appointed time and qualify each by examination. Utilizing the checklist in Appendix D, the responses will be examined to ensure they are complete, accurate, and conform to the guidelines established in this solicitation document.
- 5.1.8 A Vendor must comply with all Mandatory Requirements in order to be considered for selection under this solicitation. The Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer will examine each reply to determine whether the reply meets the Mandatory Requirements. A reply that fails to meet the Mandatory Requirements will be deemed nonresponsive and will not be evaluated.
- **5.1.9** Meeting the Mandatory Requirements is a minimum threshold and shall not impact any ranking in the evaluation process.



5.1.10 An initial determination that a reply meets the Mandatory Requirements does not preclude a subsequent determination of non-responsiveness.

5.2 Evaluation Methodology for Ranking

The Selection Team shall evaluate all submitted proposals and select the firm that, in its opinion, provides the best combination of experience, price, and a proposal that will meet the stated project objectives. Interviews may be conducted with any or all firm(s) to clarify submitted information. FSDB reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to award the bid to the proposal deemed to be in the best interest of FSDB. FSDB reserves the right to negotiate with the selected firm as to the terms of the contract, including, but not limited to, the scope of services, price, project time line, and specific personnel assigned to this project. All replies that meet the Mandatory Requirements and are determined to be otherwise responsive will be evaluated using the following process.

5.2.1 Scoring by Evaluators

FSDB's evaluators will evaluate each reply in accordance with the criteria and methodology provided in the Rating Sheets (Appendix D) as described below. FSDB reserves the right to change the evaluators in its sole discretion.

- 5.2.1.1 Completeness of submitted proposal and adherence to stated criteria: The responses will be subjectively evaluated to ensure they are complete, accurate, and conform to the guidelines established in this solicitation document and a relative rating assigned utilizing a grading range of 0-15.
- **5.2.1.2 Minority Business Enterprises (MBE):** It is the practice of Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind to encourage the maximum participation of Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) in its contract awards, based upon availability. Provide a letter and appropriate supporting documentation of MBE participation. An objective evaluation will be conducted and a **maximum of rating of 5** will be awarded based on the following:

RATING	MBE Participation
5	State of Florida Certified MBE business (submit documentation)
4	Eligible for Florida MBE certification ¹ , but not certified (submit affidavit)
3	Ineligible firm with three MBE certified sub-consultant firms contracted (submit documentation & affidavit)
2	Ineligible firm with two MBE certified sub-consultant firms contracted (submit documentation & affidavit)
1	Ineligible firm with one MBE certified sub-consultant firm contracted (submit documentation & affidavit)
0	Ineligible firm, or insufficient/no documentation submitted supporting higher rating

Regardless of rating, the firm selected to provide services shall be required to make all efforts reasonably necessary to ensure that Minority-Owned Business Enterprises have a full and fair opportunity to compete for performance on projects. The Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin or gender in the award and performance of work under this contract.

- **5.2.1.3 Price Proposal:** Total cost proposals will be ranked in ascending order and objectively scored. The lowest cost proposal will be assigned 15 points, the next lowest cost assigned 14 points, and so on. **A grading range of 0-15 is used.**
- **5.2.1.4 Experience and Ability:** The relative experience of all professionals proposed for use on the team in the planning, design and administration of the project, the abilities and qualifications of the applicant and proposed staff as related to the project's specific requirements, and their ability to accomplish the project. The relative experience and qualification of each applicant's proposed team, with respect to the project scope, will be subjectively evaluated utilizing a **grading range of 0-15**.

¹ In accordance with the Eligibility Requirements promulgated by the State of Florida Department of Management Services and found at: http://www.dms.myflorida.com/agency_administration/office_of_supplier_diversity_osd/certification/eligibility_requirements



- 5.2.1.5 References: Information obtained from the references provided with the proposal will be subjectively evaluated and a relative rating assigned. Past performance data on file with FSDB will be considered only for the past three years as of July 1 of the current year, except in cases where no performance data is on file for the applicant's firm in which case the references of the applicant will be evaluated. Members of the Selection Committee may take into consideration their own personal knowledge of a firm's past performance, but this must be documented in the selection file. A grading range of 0-10 is used.
- 5.2.1.6 Review of provided examples of system use, system reports, and other reference materials: The provided examples of system use, system reports, and other reference materials will be subjectively evaluated utilizing a grading range of 0-10.
- **5.2.1.7 Training, maintenance, and support**: The proposed training, maintenance, and support will be subjectively evaluated utilizing a **grading range of 0-10**.
- **5.2.1.8 Overall quality of the submitted proposal:** The overall quality of the submitted proposal relative to the abilities and qualifications of the applicant and proposed staff as related to the project's specific requirements, and their ability to accomplish the project, with respect to the project scope, will be subjectively evaluated utilizing a **grading range of 0-20**.

5.2.2 Ranking by Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer

The Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer will develop a ranking based on the methodology provided. This ranking will serve as the recommended ranking of FSDB's evaluators.

5.2.3 Recommendation of the Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer

After developing the recommended ranking per **Section 5.2.1**, the Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer will provide to the President or designee a report on replies deemed nonresponsive and, as to those deemed responsive, the recommended ranking of the evaluators, along with a recommendation for selection.

5.3 Final Selection and Notice of Intent to Award Contract

5.3.1 Award Selection

FSDB will select for award of the contract the responsive Vendor as determined by the President or designee to provide the best value to the State based on the following selection criteria.

- **5.3.1.1** Completeness of submitted proposal and adherence to stated criteria.
- **5.3.1.1** Minority Business Enterprises (MBE).
- **5.3.1.1** Price Proposal.
- **5.3.1.1** Experience and Ability.
- **5.3.1.1** References.
- **5.3.1.1** Review of provided examples of system use, system reports, and other reference materials.
- **5.3.1.1** Training, maintenance, and support.
- **5.3.1.1** Overall quality of the submitted proposal.

5.3.2 FSDB's Right to Rely on Replies and Evaluations

FSDB reserves the right to review and rely on relevant information contained in the replies received pursuant to **Section 4** and relevant portions of the evaluations conducted pursuant to **Section 5.1**.

5.3.3 FSDB's Selection Team Recommendation

Through the Procurement Manager and Procurement Officer, FSDB's Selection Team evaluation results will be used to develop a recommendation as to the award that will provide the best value to the State based on the above selection criteria. The Procurement Manager or Procurement Officer will prepare a report to the President or designee regarding the recommendation of the Selection Team. The evaluation of the selection team shall serve as a recommendation only.



5.3.4 President's Approval

The President or designee will approve an award that will provide the best value to the State, based on the selection criteria in **Section 5.3.1**, taking into consideration the recommended award by the Selection Team. In so doing, the President or designee is not required to score the Vendors, but will base his or her decision on the criteria set forth above. If the President or designee determines that two or more replies most advantageous to the State are equal with respect to all relevant considerations, including price, quality, and service, the award will be made in accordance with Rule 60A-1.011, F.A.C. and §295.187, F.S.

5.3.5 FSDB's Reserved Rights

FSDB reserves the right to:

- 5.4.5.1 Select one or more Vendors for the services encompassed by this solicitation, any addenda thereto and any request for additional or revised detailed written proposals or request for best and final offers;
- **5.4.5.2** Divide the work among Vendors by type of service or geographic area, or both;
- 5.4.5.3 Award contracts for less than the entire service area or less than all services encompassed by this solicitation, or both; and
- 5.4.5.4 Post a notice of withdrawal of award in the event that the successful Vendor fails to execute a contract or defaults in performance. In such event, FSDB reserves the right to re-procure services in accordance with Rule 60A-1.006(3) F.A.C.

5.3.6 Posting Notice of Award

FSDB will post a Notice of Intent to Award Contract, stating its intent to enter into one or more contracts with the Vendor or Vendors identified therein, on the VBS website as described in **Section 2.2.1**. Any negotiations to finalize terms and conditions of the contract after such notice will involve a FSDB designee and not FSDB's negotiation team, although members of the team may assist the designee in such negotiations.

[This space intentionally left blank]



APPENDIX A – General Terms & Conditions and Sample Contract

APPENDIX A-1 – Attachment A–General Conditions for Contracts

APPENDIX A-2 – Attachment B–General Conditions for Competitive Solicitations

APPENDIX A-3 – Sample Contract



THE FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND

ATTACHMENT A GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS

(revised September 2016)

Table of Contents

SECTION 1 - GENE	RAL PROVISIONS	. 2
Article 1.1.	Definitions	. 2
Article 1.2.	Applicable Law	. 2
Article 1.3.	Engagement of the Contractor	. 2
Article 1.4.	Communication between Parties	. 2
Article 1.5.	Authorization to do Business in the State of Florida	. 2
Article 1.6.	Entire Agreement	
Article 1.7.	Modification of the Contract	. 2
Article 1.8.	Renewal of the Contract	
Article 1.9.	Termination of the Contract	
Article 1.10.	Severability	
Article 1.11.	Effectiveness of the Contract	
Article 1.12.	Authorized Representatives	
Article 1.13.	All Terms and Conditions Included	
Article 1.14.	Non-waiver of Defaults	
Article 1.15.	Replacement Contract	
Article 1.16.	Immunities	
Article 1.17.	Public Records	
Article 1.18.	Jessica Lunsford Act / Background Checks	. 3
Article 1.19.	Amicable Settlement	
	ORMANCE OF THE SERVICES	
Article 2.1.	Personnel	
Article 2.2.	Information	
Article 2.3.	Performance Standards	
Article 2.4.	Codes of Conduct	
Article 2.5.	Confidentiality	
Article 2.6.	Sub-Contracting	
Article 2.7.	Liability	
Article 2.8.	Insurance	
Article 2.9.	Deliverables and Reporting Obligations	
Article 2.10.	Ownership of Copyright	
Article 2.11.	Force Majeure	
Article 2.12.	Transparency Florida Act	
Article 2.13.	Nondiscrimination and Compliance	
Article 2.14.	Financial Consequences for Failure to Perform	
Article 2.15.	Coordination of Work	
Article 2.16.	Minimum Levels of Service and Criteria for Completion of Agreement	
	NCIAL PROVISIONS	
Article 3.1.	Payments	
Article 3.2.	Payments Withheld	
Article 3.3.	Correction of Work Before Final Payments	
Article 3.4.	Liens	
Article 3.5.	Taxes, General and Contingency	.5
Article 3.6.	Travel Reimbursement	5
Article 3.7.	Return of Unspent Funds	
Article 3.7.	Pacord-kaping and Accounts	٠. ح

SECTION 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1.1. Definitions

The definitions contained in §60A-1.001, F.A.C. shall apply to this agreement. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following

- AGREEMENT: means the legally enforceable agreement that results from a successful (1) solicitation and is this Contract signed by FSDB and the Contractor, to which these General Conditions for Contracts together with all the annexes referred to herein are attached (AGREEMENT and CONTRACT may be used interchangeably);
- (2) AND: Means "or" and the word "or" means "and" wherever the contents of the contract or its purpose so requires.
- APPLICABLE LAW: means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law (3) governing this Contract:
- AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: means the person(s) authorized to represent a Party (4) in the execution of the Contract:
- CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: means any and all information regarding each Party's (5) affairs or business or method of carrying out business, and any other materials or information created or developed by either Party in connection with this Contract or otherwise, may be subject to public disclosure per §119, F.S.;
- CONTRACT MANAGER: The authorized designee who shall manage assigned contracts in accordance with all applicable provisions of Federal and Florida State Statutes, Rules, and Regulations. Contract Manager may make on-site inspections at any time and will have authority to reject all work and materials which do not conform to the contract, and to recommend solutions to questions which arise in the execution of the work as well as the authority to stop work whenever such stoppage may be necessary to insure the proper execution of the contract.
- CONTRACT: means the legally enforceable agreement that results from a successful solicitation and is this Contract signed by FSDB and the Contractor, to which these General Conditions for Contracts together with all the annexes referred to herein are attached (CONTRACT and AGREEMENT may be used interchangeably);
- CONTRACT PRICE: means the maximum amount to be paid by FSDB to the Contractor for (8) the performance of the Services as per the provisions of this Contract;
- (9) CONTRACTOR: means the party entering into the Contract with FSDB (company, consortium of companies, organization, individual expert or group of individual experts);
- FORCE MAJEURE: means any event beyond the reasonable control of the Parties, which (10)by the exercise of due diligence neither Party is able to overcome and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations hereunder impossible or as impracticable as reasonably to be considered impossible under the circumstances;
- FSDB: means The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind;
- GC: means the General Conditions for Contracts, attached as Attachment A to this (12)Contract:
- PARTY: means FSDB or the Contractor, as the case may be, and "PARTIES" means (13)both of them;
- (14)PERSON: Any individual, partnership, society, association, joint stock company, corporation, estate, receiver, trustee, assignee, referee or capacity, whether appointed by a court or others and any combination of individuals.
- PROJECT MANAGER: The authorized designee who shall manage assigned projects in (15)accordance with all applicable provisions of Federal and Florida State Statutes, Rules, and Regulations. Project Manager may make on-site inspections at any time and will have authority to reject all work and materials which do not conform to the contract, and to recommend solutions to questions which arise in the execution of the work, as well as the authority to stop work whenever such stoppage may be necessary to insure the proper execution of the contract.
- SERVICES or SCOPE OF SERVICES: means the activities to be performed by the Contractor pursuant to this Contract;
- SPECIAL CONDITIONS (SC): means the Special Conditions by which these General (17)Conditions are supplemented and/or amended;
- SUB-CONTRACTOR: means any entity to which the Contractor entrusts the performance (18)of any part of the Services in accordance with the provisions of this Contract, but not including one who merely furnishes material.
- SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTION: Instructions issued by the Project Manager to make minor changes in the work not affecting cost or time, and consistent with the purpose of the
- WORK: means any and all of the labor or materials or both, equipment, transportation, (20)or other facilities, documents, and deliverables of any kind produced in whatever format as part and result of the Services necessary to complete the contract.
- WRITTEN NOTICE: shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the firm or to an office of the corporation for whom it is intended; or if delivered at or sent by mail, to the business address shown in the bid or contract.
- GENDER NEUTRAL: Wherever used herein, a pronoun in the masculine gender shall be considered as including the feminine gender and a pronoun in the feminine gender shall be considered as including the masculine gender, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

Applicable Law

This Contract will be subject to and interpreted by the Laws of the State of Florida. All applicable Statutes, Laws, Rules, Regulations, and Standards are hereby incorporated by reference.

Engagement of the Contractor

FSDB agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor agrees to perform the services set forth in the Contract. The Contractor understands and agrees that all services contracted for are to be performed solely by the Contractor and may not be subcontracted for or assigned without prior written consent of FSDB

Article 1.4. Communication between Parties

Any notice, request or consent made, required, permitted or given under this Contract shall be in

writing and shall be deemed duly given or made when delivered by hand, mail, facsimile, or electronic mail to the Authorized Representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, at the coordinates specified in the Contract or otherwise communicated in writing by either Party.

Article 1.5. Authorization to do Business in the State of Florida

- All Contractors doing business with the State of Florida for the sale of commodities or contractual services as defined in §287.012, Florida Statutes are required to have a substitute W-9 on file with the State and register online with the My Florida Marketplace (MFMP) E-procurement system in order to become certified with FSDB, in compliance with Rule 60A-1.030, Florida Administrative Code, unless exempt under Rule 60A-1.030(3) Florida Administrative Code. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute grounds for declaring the Contractor in default and recovering reprocurement costs from the Contractor in addition to all outstanding fees.
- Registration can be completed by visiting the MFMP website at https://vendor.myfloridamarketpalce.com/. For additional information or questions, the Contractor should contact the MFMP customer service help desk at 1-866-FLA-EPRO (1-
- Registration must take place prior to execution of the Contract. (3)

Article 1.6. **Entire Agreement**

The agreement between the PARTIES concerning the subject matter hereof consists of the Contract, this Attachment A – General Conditions for Contracts (GC), and all other amendments, attachments, and exhibits referenced herein. These documents are complementary, and what is called for by any one shall be binding as if called by all. The intent of the documents is to include all labor and materials, equipment, transportation and incidentals necessary for the proper and complete execution of the work. Materials or work described in words, which so applied, have a well-known technical or trade meaning shall be held to refer to such recognized standards. In the event there is any inconsistency between the provisions of the Contract and the provisions of any other attachment or exhibit, the provisions of the Contract shall govern and control. The Contract and all other attachments and exhibits referenced herein or in the document may be referred to collectively as the "Contract." The Contract represents the total and complete agreement of the PARTIES relating to the subject matter of the Contract. This Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements or representations relating to the subject matter of the Contract. No purported modification of the Contract shall be valid or binding on either party unless such modification is contained in a document executed by both parties.

Modification of the Contract

Any modification of this AGREEMENT, including extension of the end date, must be made and agreed to by both FSDB and the Contractor in writing prior to the ending date of the AGREEMENT.

Article 1.8. Renewal of the Contract

- This Contract may be renewed for successive one (1) year terms for a total period that may not exceed three (3) years or the original term of this Contract, whichever is longer upon written notice by FSDB and written acceptance by Contractor prior to the Expiration Date.
- The RENEWAL PRICE shall be that specified in the PROPOSAL together with any (2)modifications made to this Contract.
- Costs for renewal may not be charged.
- Renewals shall be contingent upon FSDB's satisfactory performance evaluations of the (4) Contractor.
- If the term of the Contract is for a period in excess of one fiscal year, in accordance with §287.0582, F.S., the State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this contract (5)is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature.

 Exceptional purchase contracts pursuant to §287.057(3) (a) and (c), Florida Statutes, may
- not be renewed.

Article 1.9. Termination of the Contract

- Termination Based on Breach. FSDB may terminate the Agreement if the Contractor fails to (1) deliver the product within the time specified in the Contract or any extension, (2) maintain adequate progress, thus endangering performance of the Contract, (3) honor any term of the Agreement, or (4) abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement. The Contractor shall continue work on any work not terminated. If, after termination, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the default was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the FSDB. The rights and remedies of the FSDB in this clause are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Agreement.
- Termination Based on Convenience. FSDB, by written notice to the Contractor, may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part when the FSDB determines in its sole discretion that it is in the FSDB's interest to do so. The Contractor shall not furnish any product or service after it receives the notice of termination, except as necessary to complete the continued portion of the Agreement, if any. The Contractor shall not be entitled to recover any cancellation charges or lost profits.
- Other Termination. The employment of unauthorized aliens by any contractor is considered a violation for §274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If the Contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of the Agreement.
- If Contractor terminates this Agreement or if FSDB terminates this Agreement for breach, Contractor shall not receive any payment for any services. Furthermore, Contractor will be liable for difference in the increased cost, if any, FSDB would incur for similar services from another person.
- Under no event shall FSDB be required to pay Contractor any fees should this Agreement be terminated for any reason.
- In the case of termination of this contract before completion, from any cause whatsoever, Contractor, if notified to do so by FSDB shall promptly remove any part or all of his equipment and supplies from any property interest of FSDB failing which, FSDB will have the right to remove such equipment and supplies at the expense of Contractor.

Article 1.10. Severability

If any of the provisions of this Contract is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable then that provision shall be deemed to be deleted from this Contract and the remaining provisions of this Contract shall continue in full force and effect.

Article 1.11. Effectiveness of the Contract

The Contract comes into effect upon signature by both Parties and shall be in full force until the Services have been completed and the obligations of the Parties fulfilled.

Article 1.12. Authorized Representatives

Each person signing the Contract warrants that he or she is duly authorized to do so and to bind the respective party and hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, as of the date of execution.

Article 1.13. All Terms and Conditions Included

This Contract and its attachments as referenced contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. There are no provisions, terms, conditions, obligations other than those contained herein, and this Contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations, or Contracts, either verbal or written between the parties. If any terms or provisions of the Contract are found illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect and the terms of provisions shall be stricken.

Article 1.14. Non-waiver of Defaults

Failure of FSDB to declare any default immediately upon the occurrence thereof, or delay in taking any action in connection therewith, shall not waive such default. FSDB shall have the right to declare any such default at any time and take such action as might be lawful or authorized hereunder, in law or in equity. No waiver of any term, provision, condition or covenant of this Contract by FSDB shall be deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver by FSDB of any other term, provision, condition or covenant of this Contract. No payment by FSDB shall be deemed a waiver of any default hereunder.

Article 1.15. Replacement Contract

In order to conform the original agreement to current laws and conditions a replacement contract may be established as required for these services prior to the expiration of this contract. The replacement contract shall supersede and cause early termination of this contract.

Article 1.16. Immunities

No provision of this Contract shall be understood as an express or implicit waiver of the privileges and immunities to which the Parties are entitled.

Article 1.17. Public Records

- (1) The Contractor shall comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, specifically to:
 - (a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by FSDB in order to perform the services in this AGREEMENT.
 - (b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that FSDB would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.
 - (c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.
 - (d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to FSDB all public records in possession of CONTRACTOR upon termination of this AGREEMENT and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to FSDB in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of FSDB.
 - (e) The Contractor acknowledges its responsibility under Title 34, Part 19, Code of Federal Regulations; 20 United States Code, 1232g; §1002.22, Florida Statutes; and OPP 10.35 Challenge to Student Education Records; pertaining to privacy of all records that contain student information.
 - (f) All responses to a competitive solicitation are public records unless exempt by law. Any respondent claiming that its response contains information that is exempt from the public records law shall clearly segregate and mark that information and provide the specific statutory citation for such exemption.
- (2) CONTRACTOR shall notify FSDB, in writing, within three (3) days after receiving a public records request pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.
- (3) In accordance with \$287.058(1)(c), Florida Statutes, FSDB may unilaterally cancel this AGREEMENT for refusal by the CONTRACTOR to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material made or received by the CONTRACTOR in conjunction with this AGREEMENT, unless the records are exempt from Section 24(a) of Article I of the Constitution of the State of Florida and §119.07(1), Florida Statutes.
- (4) Notwithstanding any other provision of this AGREEMENT to the contrary, this Article shall survive termination of the AGREEMENT.

Article 1.18. Jessica Lunsford Act / Background Checks

- (1) In accordance with §1012.467, Florida Statutes, Contractor's employees, subcontractors, and staff who have obtained and are wearing a valid uniform statewide contractor's identification badge from any Florida school district will be permitted access to the FSDB's campus.
- (2) Unless exempt by law, the Contractor agrees that, pursuant to §1012.465 and §1012.467, Florida Statutes, any of the Contractor's employees, subcontractors, and staff, including temporary or day laborers, not possessing and wearing a valid uniform statewide contractor's identification badge shall submit to Level 2 background screening, defined in §1012.32, Florida Statutes, obtain, and wear a uniform statewide contractor's identification badge before being allowed access to the campus.

- (3) The Contractor also agrees that, while on the campus, the Contractor's employees, subcontractors, and staff shall at all times wear, so as to be visible, their uniform statewide contractor's identification badge and be subject to all of the FSDB rules and regulations that govern the behavior of its full-time employees, including all traffic rules and regulations and the prohibition of tobacco usage.
- the prohibition of tobacco usage.

 (4) The Contractor agrees that any breach of said rules and regulations may result in immediate cancellation of the Contract.
- (5) The requirements of this GENERAL CONDITION in no way obligates the Contractor if the Contractor requires no access to the aforementioned campus or facilities and does not attempt to access the campus or facilities.

Article 1.19. Amicable Settlement

The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation. Contractor has the duty to seek clarification and resolution of any issue, discrepancy, fulfillment of the contract on the part of Contractor and FSDB.

SECTION 2 - PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES

Article 2.1. Personnel

The Contractor is responsible for provision of such qualified and experienced Personnel as is required to diligently carry out the Services in accordance with the professional standards required by FSDB.

Article 2.2. Information

- (1) The Contractor shall furnish FSDB with such information concerning the performance of the Services as FSDB may from time to time reasonably request, or as otherwise provided or agreed.
- (2) In any event, the Contractor shall advise immediately FSDB of any difficulties or circumstances likely to hamper or delay the performance of the Services.

Article 2.3. Performance Standards

- (1) The Contractor shall exercise all reasonable skill, care, and diligence in the performance of the Services and shall carry out all its/their obligations in accordance with generally accepted and recognized professional standards.
- (2) The Contractor shall make every effort to mobilize all the financial, human, and material resources required for full performance of the Services.
- (3) The Contractor shall at all times, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, act to protect the legitimate interests of FSDB and shall take all reasonable steps to keep all costs to a minimum and consistent with sound professional practices.

Article 2.4. Codes of Conduct

- (1) The Contractor shall not engage and shall cause its Personnel as well as its Sub-contractors and their personnel not to engage during the term of this Contract, either directly or indirectly, in fraudulent behavior, corrupt practices, illegal actions or any other activity that is incompatible with the proper discharge of the Services or the association with FSDB, or in any work, business or professional activities which would conflict with the activities assigned to it under this Contract.
- (2) The Contractor shall seek to avoid any activities and in particular any kind of public pronouncement that may adversely reflect on its integrity, independence, and impartiality required by the status of an FSDB Contractor.
- (3) Where appropriate, the Contractor shall terminate contracts with partners or Sub-contractors involved in activities that are incompatible with their association with FSDB as per Article 2.6 (1) and Article 2.6 (2) herein.

Article 2.5. Confidentiality

- (1) The Parties acknowledge the likely disclosure to each other, during the term of this Contract, of Confidential Information. Each Party agrees not to use such Confidential Information other than in furtherance of this Contract, nor to disclose such information to any person or entity without the prior written consent of the other Party. All Confidential Information shall remain the exclusive property of the disclosing Party, however such information may be subject to public disclosure per §119, F.S.:
- (2) The Contractor acknowledges its responsibility under Title 34, Part 19, Code of Federal Regulations; 20 United States Code, 1232g; §1002.22, Florida Statutes; and Operational Policy and Procedures 10.35, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind; pertaining to privacy of all records that contain student information.
- (3) The Contractor will not, without the written authorization of FSDB's President or designee, photograph, interview, audio tape, and/or videotape while on the campus of the FSDB and will not engage in such activities when students of FSDB are attending off-campus events as invited guests.

Article 2.6. Sub-Contracting

- (1) Except with the prior written approval of FSDB, the Contractor may not assign or transfer the Contract or any part thereof, nor may the Contractor sub-contract any third party to carry out any part of the Services.
- (2) FSDB's approval on assigning or transferring of any part of the Contract or on the engagement of a Sub-contractor to perform any part of the Services shall not exonerate the Contractor of any of its obligations under this Contract and the Contractor shall be fully responsible for the co-ordination and execution of all sub-contracted activities and for the performance of its Sub-contractors. FSDB recognizes no contractual link between itself and the Contractor's Sub- contractors.
- (3) The sub-contracting and any procurement of services or goods financed by FSDB under this Contract shall observe the principles of sound financial management, ensuring transparency, competitive, equitable and unbiased selection, efficiency, high quality and economy.
- (4) Failure to comply with the procurement principles set forth in Article 2.9 (3) herein may

result in relevant costs not being considered eligible for funding by FSDB.

Liability

The Contractor shall be responsible for any losses, damages, costs and expenses of whatever kind or nature suffered by FSDB as a result of any act or omission relating to this Contract which is attributable to the Contractor, its agents, servants, and employees, as a result of its negligence or errors or any breach.

Article 2.8 Insurance

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the period of this AGREEMENT, a liability insurance policy for all acts and omissions and for the services and goods to be rendered and provide proof thereof upon execution of this AGREEMENT.

<u>Certificate of Insurance</u>
FSDB shall be furnished proof of coverage of the above required insurance. Said proof shall be submitted on a form approved by the Department of Insurance. Said certificate of insurance forms shall be completed, signed by the authorized licensed Florida Resident Agent and returned to the FSDB Contract Administrator. These certificates shall be dated and show:

- The name of the insured contractor, the specific job by name and job number, the name of The hallest of the libitiest contactor, including specific por by half earliest in John Market in the insurer, the number of the policy, its effective date, and its termination date. Statement that the Insured will mail notice to FSDB at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to
- (2) any material changes in provisions or cancellation of the policy.

Deliverables and Reporting Obligations Article 2.9.

- The Contractor shall submit to FSDB the reports and deliverables specified in the Contract, within the periods set forth.
- All the reports/deliverables shall be prepared in the Language of the Contract, signed by the Contractor's Authorized Representative and submitted to the Authorized Representative of FSDB specified in the SC, who shall be responsible for their acceptance and approval.
- If in FSDB's opinion, the quality of reporting/ deliverables is not acceptable or the content of the reports does not correspond to the Contractor's undertaking, FSDB shall, within 30 days of receiving the report/deliverable, give notice and reasons for this opinion. If not agreed otherwise, within 15 days of such notice, the Contractor shall either contest FSDB's opinion or present a revised report deliverable that meets its requirements.
- The reports/deliverables (and the corresponding invoices attached, where appropriate) will be deemed approved by FSDB if no communication setting out comments is remitted to the Contractor within 30 days of confirmation by FSDB of receipt of the reports/deliverables.
- Approval of a report/deliverable does not imply recognition by FSDB of the regularity, authenticity, completeness or correctness of the declarations and information contained therein.

Article 2.10. Ownership of Copyright

- Anything by whatsoever designation it may be known, that is produced by, or developed in connection with this contract shall become the exclusive property of FSDB and may be copyrighted, patented or otherwise restricted as provided by Florida or Federal law. Neither the Contractor nor any individual employed under this contract shall have any proprietary interest in the product.
- With respect to each Deliverable that constitutes a work of authorship within the subject matter and scope of U.S. Copyright Law, 17 U.S.C. §102-105, such work shall be a 'work for hire" as defined in 17 U.S.C. §101 and all copyrights subsisting in such work for hire shall be owned exclusively by FSDB.
- In the event it is determined as a matter of law that any such work is not a "work for hire," Contractor shall immediately assign to FSDB all copyrights subsisting therein for the consideration set forth in the contract and with no additional compensation.

The foregoing shall not apply to any preexisting software, or other work of authorship used by Contractor to create a Deliverable but which exists as work independent of the Deliverable, unless the preexisting software or work was developed by Contractor pursuant to a previous Contract with the FSDB or a purchase by FSDB under a State Term Contract.

Article 2.11. Force Majeure

- Failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations hereunder as a result of an event of Force Majeure arising after the date of signature of the Contract shall not be considered a breach of, or default under, this Contract,
- A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify as soon as practicable the other Party of occurrence of such event and afterwards of restoration of normal conditions.
- Upon notification of occurrence of an event of Force Majeure by the affected Party, the performance of the Services shall be considered suspended until the notification of restoration of normal conditions or, if the achievement of the objectives of the Contract is no longer possible at all or not to a satisfactory degree, until the Parties' decision to terminate the Contract.

Transparency Florida Act

- The Contractor acknowledges that FSDB will post electronic images of this Contract, including all attachments, modifications, renewals, and procurement documents to the state's contract tracking system, which is located on a secure website on the Internet, in accordance with §215.985, Florida Statutes.
- Pursuant to §215.985(14)(d), Florida Statutes, the Contractor shall have the right to request in writing that FSDB redact any portion of any document image that is confidential or exempt from public disclosure by law. A fee will not be charged for a redaction made pursuant to the request.

Nondiscrimination and Compliance Article 2.13.

The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work and shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, age, disability/handicap, marital status, veteran status, military status, genetic information, national origin and any other categories protected by law in the performance of the work.

Financial Consequences for Failure to Perform

- The Contract Manager shall periodically review the progress made on the activities and deliverables listed above. If the Contractor fails to meet and comply with the activities / deliverables established in the Contract or to make appropriate progress on the activities and / or towards the deliverables and they are not resolved within two (2) weeks of notification, the Contract Manager may approve a reduced payment or request the Contractor redo the work or terminate the Contract.
- If the Contractor fails to perform in accordance with this AGREEMENT to the satisfaction of FSDB, FSDB may cancel any portion of the remaining work not completed at the time of
- non-performance and unilaterally cancel this AGREEMENT.

 FSDB agrees to submit to the state's Chief Financial Officer any of the Contractor's invoices, statements or vouchers for work completed, inspected, and accepted prior to the time of non-performance with any lump sum prorated for un-received or unaccepted work and with a deduction for any damages incurred by FSDB as a result of Contractor's failure to perform.
- Failure of Contractor to complete all work and deliver all required documentation within the times specified herein will result in a deduction for liquidated damages of one-half of one percent (1/2 %) of the total contract cost for each day of delay. FSDB shall not be responsible for any additional payments for labor, overtime or other, caused by Contractor's

Coordination of Work

- Wherever work being done by the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind forces or by the other contractors is contiguous to work covered by this contract, the respective rights of the various interests involved will be established by the Project Manager, to secure the completion of the various portions of the work in general harmony.

 Contractor shall arrange his work so as not to interfere with the operations of other
- contractors employed by FSDB and engaged upon adjacent work and to join his work to that or others in a proper manner, in accordance with the spirit of the plans and specifications, and to perform his work in the proper sequence in relation to that or other contractors, all as may be directed by the Project Manager.

Article 2.16.

- e 2.16. Minimum Levels of Service and Criteria for Completion of Agreement
 The criteria for final completion of the Contract are the delivery to, and approval by FSDB of all Deliverables required by the Contract.
- Contractor shall provide no less than the services listed in this Agreement, within the times specified in this Agreement, time being of the essence in the performance of the work.
- The work shall be complete upon the receipt and acceptance of Contractor's detailed statement of work specified in this Agreement together with all invoices and other documentation specified herein, approved and accepted by FSDB's Contract Manager
- The Contractor agrees that this Agreement will be completed upon FSDB's receipt and acceptance of all DELIVERABLES described in this Agreement.

SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

Payments

- Contractor shall deliver to FSDB a detailed service ticket within (5) days after completion of work in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit inspection thereof. "Sufficient detail" shall mean a detailed description of the work performed, the dates and times that the work was performed, and the total amount charged.
- The Contractor acknowledges that all services must be verified and accepted in writing by FSDB's Contract Manager during the times specified herein, time being of the essence in performance of this Agreement.
- Amounts due to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall become payable upon receipt of the required documents from the Contractor and verification and written acceptance of the work performed by FSDB's Contract Manager. Invoices returned to a vendor due to preparation errors will result in a payment delay. Invoice payment
- requirements do not start until a properly completed invoice is provided to FSDB.

 Payments to the Contractor shall be issued in accordance with the Prompt Payment provisions of §215.422, Florida Statutes.
- In accordance with §287.0582, F.S., if the term of the Contract extends for a period in excess of one fiscal year, the State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature

Article 3.2. Payments Withheld

- FSDB may withhold or, on account of subsequently discovered evidence, nullify the whole or part of any certificate of payment to such an extent as may be necessary to protect FSDB
 - Defective work not remedied.
 - Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims
 - Failure of Contractor to make payments properly to the subcontractors or for materials or labor.
 - (d) The Contract Manager's opinion that the contract cannot be completed for the remaining or unpaid funds.
 - Failure to maintain adequate progress. (e)
 - Damage to another Contractor.
- When the above grounds are removed, payment will be made for amounts withheld.
- If the Contract Manager decides it is not in FSDBs best interest for Contractor to correct incomplete or damaged work caused by Contractor inefficiencies, FSDB will make an equitable deduction for the work from the contract price. Further, Contractor shall not be compensated for delays in the work caused by Contractor inefficiencies, correction, or rework made necessary by errors, omissions or failure to properly perform the work.

Correction of Work Before Final Payments

Contractor shall promptly make corrections to work returned by FSDB's Project Manager as failing to conform to the contract, without expense to FSDB.

Article 3.4. Liens

Neither the final payment nor any part of the retained percentage shall become due until Contractor delivers to FSDB, if requested, a complete release of all liens arising out of this contract, and an affidavit stating the release and receipts include all the labor and managerial costs for which a lien could be filed but Contractor may, if any subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or receipt in full, furnish a bond satisfactory to FSDB, to indemnify FSDB against any lien. If any lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, Contractor shall refund to FSDB all monies that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such a lien, including all costs and a reasonable attorney's

Article 3.5.

- e 3.5. Taxes, General and Contingency
 FSDB is exempted from payment of Florida State sales and use taxes. The Contractor, however, shall not use the FSDB's tax exemption number to secure any materials or services. The Contractor shall be responsible and liable for the payment of all its payroll and other Federal taxes, state sales and use taxes and other tax liabilities incurred resulting from this AGREEMENT.
- The Contractor shall not pledge the FSDB's credit or make the FSDB a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness.

Travel Reimbursement

Bills for any authorized travel expenses shall be submitted and paid in accordance with the rates specified in §112.061, Florida Statutes, governing payments by the State for travel expenses. Authorization for travel expenses must be specified in the Contract's SCOPE OF SERVICES and DELIVERABLES.

Article 3.7 Return of Unspent Funds

- In the event that any of the funds advanced to the Contractor for the performance of the Services remain unspent, the Contractor undertakes to return such funds to FSDB within 30 days of the termination of the Services or of receipt of FSDB's claim for refund.
- Bank charges incurred by the repayment of the amounts due to FSDB shall be borne entirely by the Contractor.

Record-keeping and Accounts Article 3.8.

- The Contractor shall keep accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the performance of the Services hereunder, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America and in such form and detail as will clearly identify all income and expenditure and relevant time changes.
- Unless otherwise required by FSDB's auditors and notified in advance to the Contractor, all financial and accounting records in relation to the performance of the Services under the Contract, including original payment documents, shall be kept for at least five years after the end of the Services and shall be made available to FSDB upon request.
- The Contractor agrees to permit FSDB, its auditors or its designated representatives to inspect its accounts, records or any other relevant financial information concerning the Services, for a period of up to five years as from the end of the Services.



THE FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND

ATTACHMENT B GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR COMPETITIVE SOLICITATIONS

(revised August 2015)

Table of Contents

SECTION 4 - COM	MPETITIVE BIDDING	. 2
Article 4.1.	Definitions	. 2
Article 4.2.	General Instructions.	. 2
Article 4.3.	Bidders and Subcontractor's Licensure and Registration Requirements	. 2
Article 4.4.	Detailed Instructions and Addenda	. 2
Article 4.5.	Terms and Conditions.	. 2
Article 4.6.	Questions.	. 2
Article 4.7.	Conflict of Interest.	. 2
Article 4.8.	Convicted Vendors.	. 2
Article 4.9.	No Discrimination/ Discriminatory Vendors	
Article 4.10.	Respondent's Representation and Authorization	. 2
Article 4.11.	Manufacturer's Name and Approved Equivalents	. 3
Article 4.12.	Performance Qualifications.	. 3
Article 4.13.	Clarifications/Revisions.	. 3
Article 4.14.	Public Records	. 3
Article 4.15.	Limitation on Vendor Contact with Agency During Solicitation Period	. 3
Article 4.16.	Public Opening	. 3
Article 4.17.	Postponement of openings.	. 3
Article 4.18.	Firm Response	. 3
Article 4.19.	Minor Irregularities/Right to Reject	. 3
Article 4.20.	Determination of Successful Bidder	. 3
Article 4.21.	Electronic Posting of Notice of Intended Award	. 3
Article 4.22.	Contract Formation.	. 3
Article 4.23.	Contract Overlap.	. 3
Article 4.24.	Sample Agreement.	. 3
Article 4.25.	Notice and Protest Procedures	. 3
Article 4.26.	Truth-In-Negotiation	
Article 4.27.	Limitation on Vendor Contact with Agency During Solicitation Period	4

SECTION 4 - COMPETITIVE BIDDING

In accordance with $\,$ §287.057(1), Florida Statute (F.S.), FSDB utilizes the Competitive Solicitation process for the competitive procurement of commodities and contractual services in excess of the threshold amount provided for CATEGORY TWO. Furthermore, §287.055(4), F.S. mandates that the acquisition of professional consultant services be conducted by Competitive Selection.

Definitions Article 4.1.

The definitions contained in §287, F.S.; §255, F.S.; and §60A-1.001, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) shall apply. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- BID POSTING: The official posting and tabulation of all bids received and opened duly presented in response to the bid.
- BID: The written response, reply, submission, proposal, or offer of bidder (when submitted on the reproduced approved forms) to perform the contemplated work and furnish the necessary materials and labor in accordance with the provisions of the contract documents. (bid, reply, response, offer, and proposal may be used interchangeably)
- BIDDER or OFFEROR or RESPONDENT: Any person or entity who submits a (3) response or bid for the project described in the bid documents.
- COMPENSATION: means the amount paid by the agency for professional services regardless of whether stated as compensation or stated as hourly rates, overhead (4) regardless of interior states as conject-sation of state as flowly rates, overhead rates, or other figures or formulas from which compensation can be calculated. COMPETITIVE SELECTION: A competitive selection is made as a result of a
- (5) Competitive Solicitation.
- COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION: means the process of requesting and receiving two (6) or more sealed bids, proposals, or replies submitted by responsive vendors in accordance with the terms of a competitive process, regardless of the method of procurement as defined by §287.012(6), F.S.
- CONSULTANTS' COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATION ACT (CCNA): Refers to §287.055, F.S. for the acquisition of professional architectural, engineering, landscape architectural, or surveying and mapping services.
- FIRM: means any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity permitted by law to practice architecture, engineering, or surveying and
- INVITATION TO BID (ITB): means a written or electronically posted solicitation for competitive sealed bids as defined by §287.012(16), F.S. and authorized by
- INVITATION TO NEGOTIATE (ITN): means a written or electronically posted solicitation for competitive sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence negotiations for the procurement of commodities or contractual services as defined by §287.012(17), F.S. and authorized by §287.057(1)(c), F.S.
- NEGOTIATE (or any form of that word): means to conduct legitimate, arm's length discussions and conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price. For purposes of this section, the term does not include presentation of flat-fee schedules with no alternatives or discussion.
- PROCUREMENT OFFICER: means the contracting personnel identified in the (12)Introductory Materials.
- REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP): means a written or electronically posted (13)solicitation for competitive sealed proposals as defined by §287.012(23), F.S. and authorized by §287.057(1)(b), F.S. REQUEST FOR QUOTES (RFQ): means an oral, electronic, or written request for
- written pricing or services information from a state term contract vendor for commodities or contractual services available on a state term contract from that vendor as defined by §287.012(24), F.S. and authorized by §287.056(2), F.S.
- RESPONDENT: means the entity that submits materials to FSDB in accordance with these Instructions.
- RESPONSE: means the material submitted by the respondent in answering the solicitation.
- RESPONSIBLE VENDOR: means a vendor who has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure
- RESPONSIVE BID, RESPONSIVE PROPOSAL, or RESPONSIVE REPLY: means a bid, or proposal, or reply submitted by a responsive and responsible vendor which conforms in all material respects to the solicitation.
- RESPONSIVE VENDOR: means a vendor that has submitted a bid, proposal, or reply that conforms in all material respects to the solicitation.
- TIMELINE: means the list of critical dates and actions included in the Introductory (20)Materials

Article 4.2. General Instructions.

Potential respondents to the solicitation are encouraged to carefully review all the materials contained herein and prepare responses accordingly. Companies or individuals intending to submit a response shall e-mail the Contract Administrator indicating their intent to submit a response and shall indicate their agreement that bid correspondence shall be conducted electronically by e-mail.

Bidders and Subcontractor's Licensure and Registration Requirements. Each bidder and each subcontractor whose field or area is governed by Chapter 399, 455, 489 or 633 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) for licensure must hold a valid current license as required by the Statute. If the bidder is a corporation, he must also be properly registered with the State of Florida, Department of State, Division of Corporation.

Detailed Instructions and Addenda

The Contract Administrator will furnish, prior to bid, additional written instructions necessary for the

proper execution of the work. All instructions will be consistent with the contract documents, true developments thereof and reasonably inferable therefrom. Any additional instructions which alter the contract time or cost will be issued as addenda.

Article 4.5. Terms and Conditions.

All responses are subject to the terms of the following sections of this solicitation, which, in case of conflict, shall have the order of precedence listed:

- Technical Specifications/Scope of Work.
- Special Conditions and Instructions,
- Instructions to Respondents, (3)
- (4) General Conditions and
- Introductory Materials.

FSDB objects to and shall not consider any additional terms or conditions submitted by a respondent, including any appearing in documents attached as part of a respondent's response. In submitting its response, a respondent agrees that any additional terms or conditions, whether submitted intentionally or inadvertently, shall have no force or effect. Failure to comply with terms and conditions, including those specifying information that must be submitted with a response, shall be grounds for rejecting a response.

Article 4.6. Questions.

Respondents shall address all questions regarding this solicitation to the Contract Administrator. Questions must be submitted by e-mail and must be RECEIVED NO LATER THAN three (3) business days prior to the scheduled bid opening. Questions shall be answered by e-mail and shall be made available to all respondents and shall be published as an addendum with the final bid documents. Respondents shall not contact any other employee of FSDB or the State for information with respect to this solicitation. Each respondent is responsible for monitoring the initial advertising source and the FSDB website for new or changing information. FSDB shall not be advertising source and the 150B wester of new of changing information. TSDB shall not be bound by any verbal information or by any written information that is not contained within the solicitation documents or formally noticed and issued by FSDB's contracting personnel. Questions to the Contract Administrator or to any FSDB personnel shall not constitute formal protest of the specifications or of the solicitation. (ref. §287.057(2), F.S.)

Article 4.7. Conflict of Interest.

This solicitation is subject to Chapter 112 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.). Respondents shall disclose with their response the name of any officer, director, employee or other agent who is also an employee of the State. Respondents shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the respondent or its affiliates

Convicted Vendors.

A person or affiliate placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime is prohibited from doing any of the following for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list:

- submitting a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;
- submitting a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work:
- submitting bids on leases of real property to a public entity;
- being awarded or performing work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and
- transacting business with any public entity in excess of the Category Two threshold amount (\$25,000) provided in §287.017, F.S.

No Discrimination/ Discriminatory Vendors.

The successful firm shall not discriminate against any person in accordance with federal, state, or local law. An entity or affiliate placed on the discriminatory vendor list pursuant to §287.134, F.S. may not:

- submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;
- submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work;
- submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity;
- be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, sub-contractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; or
- transact business with any public entity.

Article 4.10. Respondent's Representation and Authorization.

In submitting a response, each respondent understands, represents, and acknowledges the following (if the respondent cannot so certify to any of following, the respondent shall submit with its response a written explanation of why it cannot do so).

- The respondent is not currently under suspension or debarment by the State or any
- other governmental authority.

 To the best of the knowledge of the person signing the response, the respondent, its affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, officers, and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental authority and have not in the last ten (10) years investigation by any governmental autimity and nave not in the last ten (to) years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract.
- Respondent currently has no delinquent obligations to the State, including a claim by the State for liquidated damages under any other contract.
- The submission is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, or inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other noncompetitive response.
- The prices and amounts have been arrived at independently and without

consultation, communication, or agreement with any other respondent or potential respondent; neither the prices nor amounts, actual or approximate, have been disclosed to any respondent or potential respondent, and they will not be disclosed before the solicitation opening.

- The respondent has fully informed FSDB in writing of all convictions of the firm, its affiliates (as defined in §287.133(1)(a), F.S.), and all directors, officers, and employees of the firm and its affiliates for violation of state or federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract for violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy or material misrepresentation with respect to a public contract. This includes disclosure of the names of current employees who were convicted of contract crimes while in the employ of another company.
- Neither the respondent nor any person associated with it in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal, investigator, project director, manager, auditor, or position involving the administration of federal funds:
 - Has within the preceding three years been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them or is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state, or local government transaction or public contract; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; or
 - Has within a three-year period preceding this certification had one or more federal, state, or local government contracts terminated for cause or default.
- The product offered by the respondent will conform to the specifications without
- The respondent has read and understands the Contract terms and conditions, and the submission is made in conformance with those terms and conditions.
- If an award is made to the respondent, the respondent agrees that it intends to be legally bound to the Contract that is formed with FSDB.
- The respondent has made a diligent inquiry of its employees and agents responsible for preparing, approving, or submitting the response, and has been advised by each of them that he or she has not participated in any communication, consultation, discussion, agreement, collusion, act or other conduct inconsistent with any of the statements and representations made in the response.
- The respondent shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless FSDB and its employees against any cost, damage, or expense which may be incurred or be caused by any error in the respondent's preparation of its bid.
- All information provided by, and representations made by, the respondent are material and important and will be relied upon by FSDB in awarding the Contract. Any misstatement shall be treated as fraudulent concealment from FSDB of the true facts relating to submission of the bid. A misrepresentation shall be punishable under law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 817, F.S.

Article 4.11. Manufacturer's Name and Approved Equivalents.

Unless otherwise specified, any manufacturers' names, trade names, brand names, information or catalog numbers listed in a specification are descriptive, not restrictive. With FSDB's prior approval, the Contractor may provide any product that meets or exceeds the applicable specifications. The Contractor shall demonstrate comparability, including appropriate catalog materials, literature, specifications, test data, etc. FSDB shall determine in its sole discretion whether a product is acceptable as an equivalent.

Article 4.12. Performance Qualifications.

FSDB reserves the right to investigate or inspect at any time whether the product, qualifications, or facilities offered by Respondent meet the Contract requirements. Respondent shall at all times during the Contract term remain responsive and responsible. In determining Respondent's responsibility as a vendor, the agency shall consider all information or evidence which is gathered or comes to the attention of the agency which demonstrates the Respondent's capability to fully satisfy the requirements of the solicitation and the contract.

Respondent must be prepared, if requested by FSDB, to present evidence of experience, ability, and financial standing, as well as a statement as to plant, machinery, and capacity of the respondent for the production, distribution, and servicing of the product bid. If FSDB determines that the conditions of the solicitation documents are not complied with, or that the product proposed to be furnished does not meet the specified requirements, or that the qualifications, financial to be furnished does not meet the specified requirements, or that the qualifications, financial standing, or facilities are not satisfactory, or that performance is untimely, FSDB may reject the response or terminate the Contract. Respondent may be disqualified from receiving awards if respondent, or anyone in respondent's employment, has previously failed to perform satisfactorily in connection with public bidding or contracts. This paragraph shall not mean or imply that it is obligatory upon FSDB to make an investigation either before or after award of the Contract, but should FSDB elect to do so, respondent is not relieved from fulfilling all Contract requirements.

Clarifications/Revisions.

Before award, FSDB reserves the right to seek clarifications or request any information deemed necessary for proper evaluation of submissions from all respondents deemed eligible for Contract award. Failure to provide requested information may result in rejection of the response.

Public Records.

Article 1, section 24, Florida Constitution, guarantees every person access to all public records, and §119.011, F.S., provides a broad definition of a public record. As such, all responses to a competitive solicitation are public records unless exempt by law. Any respondent claiming that its response contains information that is exempt from the public records law shall clearly segregate and mark that information and provide the specific statutory citation for such exemption.

Limitation on Vendor Contact with Agency During Solicitation Period.

Respondents to this solicitation or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, between the release of the solicitation and the end of the 72-hour period following the agency posting the notice of intended award, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays, any employee or officer of the executive or legislative branch concerning any aspect of this solicitation, except in writing to the procurement officer or as provided in the solicitation documents. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a response.

Article 4.16. Public Opening.

Responses shall be opened on the date and at the location indicated on the Timeline.

Respondents may attend, but are not required to attend. FSDB may choose not to announce prices or release other materials pursuant to \$119.071(1)(b), F.S. Any person requiring a special accommodation because of a disability should contact the Contract Administrator at least five (5) workdays prior to the solicitation opening. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact FSDB by using the Florida Relay Service at (800) 955-8771 (TDD). (ref. §287.057(1), F.S.)

Postponement of openings.

A scheduled opening will be considered postponed when an emergency or unanticipated events that interrupt normal governmental processes so that the conduct of bid opening as scheduled is impractical. In such cases, an announcement of the rescheduled opening shall be publicly posted on the first work day on which normal Government processes resume.

Article 4.18. Firm Response.

FSDB may make an award within sixty (60) days after the date of the opening, during which period responses shall remain firm and shall not be withdrawn. If award is not made within sixty (60) days, the response shall remain firm until either FSDB awards the Contract or FSDB receives from the respondent written notice that the response is withdrawn. Any response that expresses a shorter duration may, in FSDB's sole discretion, be accepted or rejected.

Minor Irregularities/Right to Reject.

- FSDB reserves the right to reject any and all bids or separable portions thereof, under any of the circumstances prescribed in Rule 60D-5.0071, F.A.C., and to negotiate the contract in accordance with Rules 60D-5.008 and 60D-5.0091, F.A.C., if the low qualified bid exceeds the project construction budget.
- FSDB reserves the right to waive any minor irregularity, technicality, or omission if FSDB determines that doing so will serve the State's best interests.
- FSDB may reject any response not submitted in the manner specified by the solicitation documents.

Article 4.20. **Determination of Successful Bidder**

- All projects except where competitive bidding is waived under the provisions of Rule 60D-5.008, F.A.C., will be publicly bid in accordance with the provisions herein. Award of contract will be made to the responsive bidder, determined to be qualified in accordance with the provisions herein and meeting the requirements of the bidding documents, that submits the lowest valid bid for the work. The lowest bid will be determined as follows:
- The lowest bids will be the bids from the responsive bidders that have submitted the lowest prices for the base bid or the base bid plus the additive alternates or less the deductive alternates chosen by FSDB to be included in or excluded from the proposed contract, taken in numerical order listed in the bid documents.
- On projects whose bidding documents provide for evaluation of the bids based performance criteria, the lowest bid will be the bid by the firm whose bid products are determined to yield the lowest total cost in accordance with the criteria set forth in the bidding documents.
- FSDB reserves the right to award contracts to multiple firms

Article 4.21 Electronic Posting of Notice of Intended Award.

Based on the evaluation, on the date indicated on the Timeline, FSDB shall electronically post a notice of intended award at http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs-www.main-menu. If the notice of award is delayed, in lieu of posting the notice of intended award FSDB shall post a notice of the delay and a revised date for posting the notice of intended award. Any person who is adversely affected by the decision shall file with FSDB a notice of protest within 72 hours after the electronic posting. FSDB shall not provide tabulations or notices of award by telephone.

Contract Formation.

FSDB shall issue a notice of award, if any, to successful respondent(s), however, no contract shall be formed between respondent and FSDB until FSDB signs the Contract. FSDB shall not be liable for any costs incurred by a respondent in preparing or producing its response or for any work performed before the Contract is effective.

Contract Overlap.

Respondents shall identify any products covered by this solicitation that they are currently authorized to furnish under any state term contract. By entering into the Contract, a Contractor authorizes FSDB to eliminate duplication between agreements in the manner FSDB deems to be in its best interest

Article 4.24. Sample Agreement.

A sample agreement may be included in the solicitation documents. This document is provided for reference only and may or may not reflect the actual final agreement. The final agreement will be prepared in a manner that conforms to the laws and conditions in effect at the time and may differ from the provided sample agreement.

Article 4.25. Notice and Protest Procedures

Notice: On contracts within Levels, 2, 3, 4, and 5, the notice of a decision or intended decision on contract award or bid rejection shall be given by posting the bid tabulation at the location where the bids were opened or by public advertisement, electronic mail, or certified United States mail, return receipt requested to each bidder. Notification and advertisement is conducted pursuant to §255.0525, F.S. and may include but not be limited to: the Florida

Administrative Weekly, DemandStar, FSDB Website, and the My Florida Market Place Vendor Bid System, and additional notifications and advertisements at the discretion of FSDB or as required by law.

(2) Protest

- It is FSDB's intent to ensure that specifications are written to obtain the best value (a) for the State and those specifications are written to ensure competitiveness, fairness, necessity, and reasonableness in the solicitation process. §120.57(3)(b), F.S. and \$28-110.003, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) require that a notice of protest of the solicitation documents shall be made within seventy-two hours after the posting of the solicitation. §120.57(3)(a), F.S. requires the following statement to be included in the solicitation: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in §120.57(3), F.S., shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, F.S." §28-110.005, F.A.C. requires the following statement to be included in the solicitation: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in §120.57(3), F.S., or failure to post the bond or other security required by law within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, F.S." Any protest concerning an FSDB solicitation shall be made in accordance with §120.57(3) and §287.042(2), F.S. and Chapter 28-110 of the F.A.C. Questions to the Contract Administrator shall not constitute formal notice of a protest.
- (b) Any person who is affected adversely by FSDB's decision or intended decision shall file with FSDB a notice of protest in writing within 72 hours, excluding Saturday, Sunday and State legal holidays, after receipt of the bidding documents if the protest is directed toward the bidding documents or after the notice of FSDB's decision or intended decision on contract award or bid rejection if the protest is directed toward contract award or bid rejection.
- (c) Thereafter a formal written protest by petition in compliance with §120.53 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, and Rule 60D-5.010, F.A.C., must be filed with FSDB within ten (10) days after the date the notice of protest was filed.
- (d) Failure to file a timely notice of protest or failure to file a timely formal written protest petition shall constitute a waiver of protest proceedings. Any protest filed prior to posting of the bid tabulation or receipt of the notice of the agency decision or intended decision will be considered abandoned unless renewed within the time provided for protests.
- (e) FSDB and the Commission on Minority Economic and Business Development is hereby granted standing to protest, pursuant to §287.0945, F.S. in a timely manner, any contract award in competitive bidding for contractual services and construction contracts that fail to include minority business enterprise participation, if any responding bidder has demonstrated the ability to achieve any level of participation, or any contract award for commodities where, a reasonable and economical opportunity to reserve a contract statewide or district level, for minority participation was not executed or, and agency failed to adopt applicable preference for minority participation. Any low bidder with no participation may be presumed not in "good faith". All bidders will be notified of the minority participation goal by addendum.

(3) Owner Action

- (a) Upon receipt of a notice of protest that has been timely filed, FSDB shall delay the contract award process until the subject of the protest is resolved by mutual agreement between the parties or by final Owner action, unless FSDB sets forth in writing particular facts and circumstances which require the continuation of the bid solicitation process or the contract award process without delay to avoid an immediate and serious danger to public health, safety, or welfare; provided, however, that if the petition is not files within the time stated above, the contract award process may continue as if the notice of protest had not been filed.
- (b) Upon receipt of the formal written protest petition which has been timely field, FSDB shall attempt to resolve the protest by mutual agreement between the parties within 7 days, excluding Saturday, Sunday and legal State holidays.
 (c) If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within said seven (7) days, and if
- (c) If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within said seven (7) days, and if no disputed issue of material fact is involved, FSDB may designate a Hearing Officer who shall conduct an informal proceeding pursuant to § 120.57, Florida Statutes, and Rule 60D-5.010, F.A.C.. The qualifications of such designated Hearing Officer shall be: 1. A member in good standing of the Florida Bar; or 2. A person knowledgeable by virtue of practical experience of the procedures relating to soliciting and evaluating bids for state contracts. Notice of informal proceedings shall be given no less than three days prior to the proceeding. The Proceedings may be held before FSDB
- (d) If there is a disputed issue of material fact, the protest shall be referred to the Division of Administrative Hearings of Department of Administration, State of Florida, for proceedings under Section 120.57(1).

Article 4.26. Truth-In-Negotiation. The successful firm shall be required to execute a Truth-In-Negotiation Certificate pursuant to §287.055, F.S.

Article 4.27. Limitation on Vendor Contact with Agency During Solicitation Period. Respondents to this solicitation or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, between the release of the solicitation and the end of the 72-hour period following the agency posting the notice of intended award, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays, any employee or officer of the executive or legislative branch concerning any aspect of this solicitation, except in writing to the procurement officer or as provided in the solicitation documents. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a response.

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF FLORIDA THE FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND AND [COMPANY OR ORGANIZATION NAME]

This AGREEMENT is entered into in the City of Saint Augustine, St. Johns County, Florida, by and between THE STATE OF FLORIDA, THE FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND, hereinafter called "AGENCY", an agency of the State of Florida, with headquarters located at 207 North San Marco Avenue, Saint Augustine, Florida 32084, and [COMPANY OR ORGANIZATION NAME], hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR" authorized to do business in the State of Florida, with its principal office at [COMPANY OR ORGANIZATION ADDRESS]. Agency and Contractor are collectively referred to herein as the "Parties." This AGREEMENT shall bind the parties upon its execution by their representatives.

1. ENGAGEMENT OF THE CONTRACTOR

The AGENCY agrees to engage the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR agrees to perform the services set forth below, in the Competitive Solicitation, the Solicitation Response, and in the attached General Conditions which are incorporated herein by reference. The CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that all services contracted for are to be performed solely by the CONTRACTOR and may not be subcontracted for or assigned without prior written consent of the AGENCY.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

(1) CONTRACTOR shall DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES

3. DELIVERABLES AND PAYMENTS

- (1) The following is the itemized list of each Deliverable which the CONTRACTOR is required to provide to the AGENCY, and for each Deliverable, the specifications for the Deliverable; the description of the activities leading to the Deliverable; and, the expected date of completion of the Deliverable:
 - (a) DETAILED DELIVERABLES
- (2) The total amount to be paid to CONTRACTOR for all services and work performed under this AGREEMENT shall be/not exceed [payment schedule and/or amount].

4. TIME OF PERFORMANCE

This AGREEMENT shall be effective [date], or upon the date of execution by both CONTRACTOR and AGENCY, whichever is later ("Effective Date") and shall expire on [date], unless cancelled earlier in accordance with its terms ("Expiration Date").

5. MODIFICATION OF STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Each of the following enumerated provisions supersedes or modifies, as indicated, the Section of Attachment A, General Conditions, to which it expressly refers: LIST

6. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Contract includes the following enumerated additional terms and conditions: LIST

As provided in Section 287.042(16)(a), F.S., other state agencies may purchase from the resulting contract, provided that the Department of Management Services has determined that the contract's use is cost-effective and in the best interest of the State. Upon such approval, the Contractor may, at its discretion, sell these commodities or services to additional agencies, upon the terms and conditions contained herein.

7. DEBARMENT

Federal Executive Order (E.O.) 12549 "Debarment" requires that all contractors receiving individual awards, using federal funds, and all sub-recipients certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency from doing business with the Federal Government. By signing this document you certify that your organization and its principals are not debarred.

8. APPROVAL AND EXECUTION

IN WITNESS WHEROF, the FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND and **COMPANY OR ORGANIZATION NAME**, have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed by their undersigned officials, duly authorized.

COMPANY OR ORGANIZATION NAME	FOR THE FLORIDA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BL	IND
X[NAME][TITLE]	X [NAME][TITLE]	
Date signed	Date signed	
EIN:	EIN:	



(Signature of principal in firm)

Florida School for the	Deaf and the Blind				☐ Decline to I
Purchasing Departme Charles Meyers, Cont 207 San Marco Avent St. Augustine, FL 320	tract Administrator ue	_	Submitted	d by (Company N	ame):
To Whom It May Con	cern:				
The undersigned Cor acility project in St. Jo	ntractor, hereinafter called "Bidder" ohns County.	proposes to furn	ish all materials and la	abor for The Flori	da School for the
Project Name: In	tegrated Mass Alert and Notification	on System - RFP-	17-026		
n full accordance with	n the Scope of Work Specifications	s bidder submits t	he following cost propo	osal(s).	
	Product/Feature/Option	One time or Recurring Cost	Quantity	Unit Price	Total Price
		COSt			
-					
-					
-					
			First Year Fees Years 2-5 Annual Fee		
force and effect for a proposal or withdraw	e Agreement by the "Owner," the period of thirty (30) days after the from the competition within said the ecutive calendar days after it is su	ne time of the opening (30) day perion	d and does hereby ag ening of this proposal, od, (2) that in the ever	and that the "Bint the contract is	dder" will not revo awarded to this "E
IN WITNESS WHERE	EOF, the Bidder has hereunto set I	nis/her signature a	and affixed his/her sea	I this	

(firm name and title) (Seal)



(Type contractor's Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulations license number)
State of Florida County of St. Johns
PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY,
who after being sworn by (name of individual signing) me, affixed his/her signature in the space provided above on thisday of, 20
(Notary Public)
My commission expires:

END OF PROPOSAL FORM DOCUMENT

COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION		l	l	ľ	le l	<u> </u>	daS	မြ	9	r th	e D	afa	l bu	The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind	
EVALUATION FORM				Integ	grate	d Ma	ss Al	ert a	nd N	otifi	catio	n Sy	sten	Integrated Mass Alert and Notification System SELECTION	
Project No. RFP-17-026 Project Name: Integrated Mass Alert and Notification System Project Location: FSDB Date: September 12, 2017	QUALIFYING SCREENING	FYING	SCRE	ENING					EVAL	EVALUATION	2				
Selection Committee Member: Signature:	entib sed ended beviece Alscogard 4.1.4 WAI seigno 8 suity lisnigino enO 1.2.4 naibe8 WAI ege9 etiT	2.2.4 notices WAI f dsT	E.S.A notices WAIS deT	4.S.4 notices WAI & dsT	4.8.4 WAI is rmo 7 yoo Distri	Electronic Copy Format IAW 4.3.5 Complete ness of submitted proposel	and adherence to state of chiteria Minority Business Enterprises (MBE)	lesogard soft	Experience and Ability	ээлелей	Review of provided examples of system use, system reports, and other reference materials	Training, maintenance, and support	Overall quality of the submitted proposal	ЈАТОТ	
Applicants:	dby	ualificati	on Scree	Qualification Screening Staff	aff - (y/n)	-	⊢	⊢	15	10	9	10	20	100 Comments	
		L		┢	┝	┞	L		L	L	L			0	
														0	
														0	
														0	
														0	
														0	
														0	
														0	
						Н								0	
						\dashv								0	
														0	
														0	
					\dashv	Н								0	
						\dashv								0	
						-								0	
						\dashv								0	
						\dashv								0	
														0	
		Ц			\dashv	Н	Н	Ц	Ц	Ц				0	





APPENDIX C - Questionnaire

Using a separate piece of paper, answer the below questions in the sequence in which they appear. All answers should be numbered as indicated and each answer should be preceded by the text of the question. For convenience, these questions are provided in a Word Document so that they may be answered directly therein. The Word Document is located in the FSDB Solicitation Folder accessed from the FSDB website and found at: http://www.fsdb.k12.fl.us/index.php/services/competitive-solicitations

1.0 System Architecture, Infrastructure, and Security

- 1) Overall solution to System Architecture, Infrastructure, and Security specifications.
- 2) Proposer should identify the operating system platform the software runs on, and how the virtual machine will be created. FSDB uses VMware for its virtual environment.
- Describe the security camera integration.
- 4) Describe the Shooter Detection System.

2.0 Message Creation and Delivery

- 1) Overall solution to Message Creation and Delivery specifications.
- 2) Describe how video can be pushed to classrooms, overriding whatever is being displayed at the time. What kind of multimedia devices can receive the video?
- 3) Please completely explain how notifications are initiated within proposed system.
- System should include an accurate and clear text-to-speech feature for notifications. Describe the solution.
- 5) Proposer should describe the ability of their system to execute multiple notification requests simultaneously (i.e. different messages delivered to different groups of contacts at the same time).
- 6) FSDB requires the ability to terminate any message notification in progress. Proposer should describe its ability to cancel or terminate the process in the middle of sending out an alert or mass notification message. Describe this capability for text, voice, and email.
- 7) Explain whether the proposer's product allows for message expiration.
- 8) Fully describe the function, benefits, and all capabilities of the proposed mobile application.
- 9) Fully describe the wireless panic button solution and benefits.
- 10) Fully describe how messages can be delivered to softphones and videophones.

3.0 Training, Maintenance, Support

- 1) Overall solution to Training, Maintenance, Support specifications
- 2) Detail the number of sessions offered and the format of training you will provide.
- 3) Should FSDB desire any additional on site or webinar style training beyond that stated please provide the cost for any such additional training sessions.
- 4) Proposers should supply examples of training materials and descriptions of the training sessions as part of their proposal response.
- 5) Please describe any follow-up training sessions (i.e., refreshers, new hire and new features) that are offered. Detail the format of training you would provide. Indicate if this is included in your proposal at no additional cost or if this would involve additional costs.
- 6) The proposer should provide a written plan describing how they will release, update and maintain their system software for FSDB. The proposer should identify the releases, updates and maintenance which are included in their proposal.

[This space intentionally left blank]



APPENDIX D – Qualification and Rating and Evaluation Sheet(s)

Qualifica	ation (Checklist	
	4.2.1		Title Page
		4.2.1.1	Project Name and Solicitation number;
		4.2.1.2	Vendor's name, address, and federal tax identification number;
		4.2.1.3	Name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of person who can respond to inquiries regarding the reply; and
		4.2.1.4	Name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of person who will sign a contract, if awarded.
	4.2.2 □	2 4.2.2.1	TAB 1: Required Vendor's Statements and Certifications – Mandatory Requirements Corporate Charter/Business Registration
		4.2.2.1	My Florida Market Place (MFMP) Registration
		4.2.2.3	Receipt of Addendum Form found in Appendix E;
		4.2.2.4	Identical Tie Bids Statement found in Appendix F;
		4.2.2.5	Public Entity Crimes Sworn Statement found in Appendix G;
		4.2.2.6	Affidavit of Compliance with Minority Business Participation found in Appendix H;
		4.2.2.7	Notice to Contractors found in Appendix I;
	4.2.4		TAB 2: Responding to the Specifications
	۲. <u>۲</u> .۲	4.2.4.1	Respondent Cost Proposal.
		4.2.4.2	Respondent Questionnaire.
	405		
	4.2.5	4.2.5.1	TAB 3: Vendor's Qualifications References
		4.2.5.1	Qualifications and Experience
	ш	4.2.3.2	Qualifications and Experience
	4.3.4	ļ	Hard-copy Reply Format
	Repl	ies must	be typed, single-spaced, on 8-1/2" x 11" paper. Pages must be numbered in a logical, consistent
	fash	ion. Figure	es, charts and tables should be numbered and referenced by number in the text. The original and each
	copy	of the rep	oly must be bound and the front of each clearly labeled with the following:
			Title of the Reply;
			Solicitation number;
			Vendor's name; and
		4.3.4.4	Identification of the enclosed document (the original reply must be clearly marked as such and copies
			identified and numbered as copy #1, copy #2, etc.).
	4.3.5	5	Electronic Copy Format
	The	required e	electronic format of the Reply must be on a USB Thumb Drive.



APPENDIX E – Receipt of Addendum Form

Acknowledgement is her bidding period:	eby made of receipt of the following Addenda issued during the
ADDENDA NO	DATED
ADDENDA NO	DATED
ADDENDA NO	DATED
PRIOR TO BIDDING, SITE	E VISITS WERE MADE BY MY FIRM ON THE FOLLOWING DATE(S):
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bidder h	as hereunto set his/her signature and affixed his/her seal this
day of, 20	BY: (name of authorized principal)
	(name of authorized principal)
(Signature of principal in firm)	(firm name and title) (Seal)
(Type contractor's Florida Departme	nt of Business and Professional Regulations license number)
State of Florida County of St. Johns	
PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE	ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY,
who after being sworn by (name of in, 20	 ndividual signing) me, affixed his/her signature in the space provided above on this
(Notary Public)	
My commission expires:	



My commission expires:

APPENDIX F - Identical Tie Bids Statement

Whenever two or more bids which are equal with respect to price, quality and service are received by the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind for the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. Established procedures for processing tie bids will be followed if none of the tied contractors have a drug-free workplace program. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:

- 1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- 2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business' policy of maintaining a drugfree workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- 3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified subsection 1 (above).
- 4. In the statement specified in subsection 1., notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any violations of Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- 5. Impose a sanction on or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community by any employee who is so convicted.
- 6. Make a good-faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace though implementation of this section.



APPENDIX G - Public Entity Crimes Sworn Statement

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO §287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1. This sworn statement is submitted to The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind by

(print

individual's

_ (print name of entity submitting sworn statement) whose business address is

and

name

and its Federal Employer Identification

		r (FEIN) is (If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signiment:)
2.	violatio with an but not politica	rstand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1) (g), Florida Statutes, means in of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business y public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including limited to, and bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency of subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, briber on, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
3.	finding state tr	stand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1) (b), Florida Statutes means of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal ial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result erdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
4.	I under	stand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1) (a), Florida Statutes, means:
	1)	A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
	2)	An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and whas been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, director executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members and agents whose are active in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value und an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of public entitioning in the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.
5.	or entit contract or which officers	stand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1) (e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a bindirect and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity hotherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active ement of an entity.
6.		on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the enting this sworn statement. (Indicate which statement applies.)
	olders, r	r the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, partne nembers, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been deconvicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
	olders, r	ntity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partne nembers, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been deconvicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
	olders, r	the entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partne nembers, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been do convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent



proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. (Attach a copy of the final order.)

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bidde	r has hereunto set his/her signature and affixed his/her seal this
day of , 20	. BY:
	BY: (name of authorized principal)
(Signature of principal in firm)	(firm name and title) (Seal)
(Type contractor's Florida Departr	ment of Business and Professional Regulations license number)
State of Florida County of St. Johns	
PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFOR	RE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY,
who after being sworn by (name o	 f individual signing) me, affixed his/her signature in the space provided above on this 20
(Notary Public)	_
My commission expires:	



APPENDIX H – Affidavit of Compliance with Minority Business Participation

C_0	mes now			as or		
		(Type name o	f firm authority)	(Type position of authority)		
			and a	after being sworn, deposes and states under oath:		
	(Type nam	e of firm)				
1.	I have read the policy of The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind regarding the promotion of equal opportunity in the School's construction process.					
2.				ve have contacted the following persons/firms in order to encourage a part of the bid that would otherwise have been subcontracted out by		
FIF	RM		COI	NTACT PERSON		
3.	Our Firm has a	lso taken additi	onal action to solic	eit and encourage minority business participation as follows:		
FIII	DTHER AFFIANT S	AVETH NOT IN W	ITNESS WHEREOF †	the Bidder has hereunto set his/her signature and affixed his/her seal this		
1 01				v		
	day or	, 20 1	BY: (name of authorize			
			_			
(Sig	gnature of principal i	n firm)	(firm name and title	e) (Seal)		
(Ty	pe contractor's Flo	orida Department	of Business and Prof			
Sta	te of Florida, Coun	ity of St. Johns				
			E, THE UNDERSIGNE	D ALITHODITY		
			-, THE UNDERSIONE	D AUTHORIT,		
who		n by (name of indi , 20		ffixed his/her signature in the space provided above on this		
	(Notary Publi	ic)				
Mv	commission exnir	PC.				



APPENDIX I – Notice to Contractors

This form must be signed by the owner or corporate officer of the firm covered by this contract. This form will become a legal part of this contract.

- 1. All staff and employees of the contractor must contact Fieldprint prior to commencing any work on the campus (instructions attached).
- Fieldprint will initiate background checks on all contractors and their staffs. No one will be permitted access to the campus until completion of the background check and issuance of an FSDB Identification.
- Once cleared each individual will be issued an FSDB identification badge. This identification
 must be displayed by the individual at all times. If any person working on campus fails to
 display the identification he will be escorted from the campus and not permitted to return.
- 4. All contractors are required to ensure that persons working under their contract have completed the required background check. This requirement applies to any sub-contractor working under general contract.
- 5. Failure of the contractor to ensure compliance with the previous requirements may lead to termination of this contract and the possibility of future work at FSDB.

	Name of Firm
Ву:	Authorized Signature
	(Print Name as Signed Above)
	Title
	Date



APPENDIX J - Reply Submission Label

Replies must be received by FSDB no later than the date and time and at the address provided in **Section 2.5**. All methods of delivery or transmittal to FSDB's contact person remain the responsibility of the prospective Vendor and the risk of non-receipt or delayed receipt shall be exclusively the risk of the prospective Vendor.

Responses will be received at:

The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind Attention: Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator Building #28, Purchasing Department 207 North San Marco Avenue St. Augustine, FL. 32084

- Time of arrival for hand delivered responses shall be determined by the time of arrival at FSDB Campus Police Security Check Point.
- Time of arrival for responses delivered by mail or courier shall be determined by the time of receipt by FSDB Campus Mail Room

Responses arriving after the deadline or not marked as instructed will not be opened or returned.

SEALED RESPONSE FOR: Integrated Mass Notification Sys	
FROM:	
† Company Name	
Attention: Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator	
DO NOT OPEN PRIOR TO: September 12, 2017 at 2:00PM	
Received By:	



APPENDIX K – Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply

Vendors who are interested in responding to this solicitation are encouraged to send a Notice of Intent to Submit a Reply (Appendix I) to the Procurement Officer specified below and in in Section 1.4, on or before the date and time specified in Section 2.5. Submission of a Notice of Intent is <u>not</u> a pre-requisite for acceptance of replies from prospective Vendors.

Mailing Address:

The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind Attention: Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator Building #28, Purchasing Department 207 North San Marco Avenue St. Augustine, FL. 32084

- 1. Charles Meyers, Contract Administrator & Procurement Officer, 904-827-2294, meyersc@fsdb.k12.fl.us
- 2. Susan Bright, Director of Purchasing & Procurement Manager, 904-827-2356, brights@fsdb.k12.fl.us